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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and
mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized
companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes New
Materials Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.

This report will be available on the Company’s website http://www.syeamt.com
and will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Information” page on the
GEM website at http://www.hkgem.com for at least 7 days from the date of its
posting.
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HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETEHE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to you the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group was
RMB131.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 30.6%.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Upholding leading strategic role In 2021, the production of ITO film of the
Group recorded year-on-year increase of 10%, accounting for nearly 65% of
the market share, which enabled this principal business to maintain a leading
position in terms of market share in the PRC.

Upholding cost reduction and efficiency improvement The Group had
effectively reduce production cost by changing the operation model,
developing new products, introducing competitive products and improving
production techniques throughout all areas of operations from research and
development, procurement to production.

Upholding product market expansion In 2021, the official bulk production
of motor vehicle films of the Group had been seamlessly realized, which
paved a solid foundation for tapping into the motor vehicle sector. The
market development for our multimedia screen door systems for railways
had achieved breakthrough, through which various cities such as Lanzhou
and Jinan had gradually adopted the multimedia screen door systems. Our
participation of construction projects for public sector, including a museum
in Shenyang and Guiyang Longdongbao Airport had facilitated the application
of low-carbon, energy conservative technologies.
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TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In respect of technology research and innovation, the Group has placed
technology as its key direction and upheld research, development and
innovation as its core strategic support to achieve its objective of producing
“products representing the future”. We have increased our effort in research
and development and gained considerable results therefrom. The Group
has been approved to be placed in the 19th list of provincial-level enterprise
technology center, our project of “Polymer-stabilized metallurgical materials
with electronically smart light-temperature controlled” has been recognized
under the “2020 Zhuhai Industry-University-Research cooperation-funding
programmes”, and our “smart liquid crystal light-adjusting film for motor
vehicles” project has gained Independent Innovation Award by 2021 Zhuhai
Innovative Technology Awards. In 2021, the Group has obtained 20 patents,
4 of them are invention patent and 16 of them are utility patents.

FUTURE PLANS

Adhering to our new development vision of “prioritizing quality and
efficiency”, the Group has always upheld technology research, development
and innovation as its strategic support for business operation. On the basis
of strengthening technology research and development, we have accelerated
the formation of our innovative chain from theory study, experimental
development to practical application, striving to transform the research
results into production capability so as to consolidate our leading position in
the new material industry.

Zhang Chao
Chairman

21 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group carries out research and development on, and manufactures and
sells ITO film, Smart Polymer-Dispersed Liquid Crystals (“PDLC”) products,
LED Display and Projection System. The Group uses ITO film as one of the
main materials for the development of downstream products, namely: (i)
PDLC film (i.e. Smart Light-adjusting Film); (ii) electronically switchable
glass (i.e. Smart Light-adjusting Glass); and (iii) LED Display and Projection
System. The Group is one of the few integrated manufacturers in the PRC
which produces and sells ITO film as well as a range of related downstream
products.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, we faced keen competition in the
saturated domestic market. Although we recorded growth in sales and gross
profit as compared to the same period of 2020, our gross profit margin
dropped because of the price competition.

ITO film can be applied for use in a variety of products including smart
phones, GPS systems and other touch-screen devices and equipment such
as automated teller machines. Our ITO film customers are primarily domestic
touch-screen device manufacturers. Revenue from sales of ITO film was
approximately RMB47.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which represented an increase of approximately RMB4.7 million or 10.9%,
from approximately RMB43.1 million for the same period in 2020.

Smart PDLC products include Smart Light-adjusting Film and Smart Light-
adjusting Glass. Smart Light-adjusting Film can be switched from a milky,
cloudy, translucent and opaque state into a colourless and transparent state
when electricity is applied to it, and may be applied to windows and glass to
control the passing-through of light. Smart Light-adjusting Glass permits a user
to control the permeability of light through the glass by adjusting the voltage
of electricity voltage applied to the Smart Light-adjusting Film fixed therein.
Our Smart PDLC products customers are primarily construction companies
and contractors of developers. Revenue from sales of Smart PDLC products
was approximately RMB41.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which represented a decrease of approximately RMB7.4 million or 15.1%,
from approximately RMB48.9 million for the same period in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LED Display and Projection System has excellent brightness and energy-
saving characteristics. Such display and projection screens are manufactured
using Smart PDLC Products which can change from opaque for projection to
transparent when switching the power source applied to it. Our LED Display
and Projection System customers are commercial users, primarily media
companies and transportation equipment companies. Revenue from sales of
LED Display and Projection System was approximately RMB11.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which represented a significant increase
of approximately RMB11.3 million or 52 times, from approximately RMBO.2
million for the same period in 2020.

Others include sales of other materials and products. The revenue from
other products was approximately RMB30.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which represented a significant increase of approximately
RMB22.1 million or 2.7 times, from approximately RMB&.3 million for the
same period in 2020.

Our Group strives to manufacture and supply high quality products to
our customers, and our Directors believe that our Group is a reputable
supplier of ITO film and related downstream products in the PRC. Our key
operating subsidiary was ranked as the leading manufacturer of Smart
Light-adjusting Products in the PRC in terms of market share by revenue.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, our revenue has recorded
growth of approximately 30.6% as compared to the same period in 2020.
However, we recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB18.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
as compared with the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB584,000 for same period in 2020. The turnaround was
mainly attributable to the Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak
and related measures imposed in China. As the overall business sentiment
had yet to recover, trade receivables due from certain customers became
overdue. Accordingly, impairment losses of trade receivables of approximately
RMB25.2 million was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, while
reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables of approximately RMB3.0
million was recorded for the same period in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& D

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Our Directors believe that, as a market participant which is active in the
technology sector, it is crucial for the business of our Group to devote
substantial resources towards research and development (including
identifying new materials and applications) which will advance or sustain its
competitiveness in light of evolving market trends and customer preferences
and needs. Further, our Directors believe that our Group’s current market
leading positions in the PRC by market share relating to its ITO film and
Smart PDLC products is testimonial of sufficient market demand for its
products. In response to the rapidly changing market conditions of the Smart
PDLC products, our Group has been diversifying our product range.

Looking into the future, we believe that the competition remains keen in the
domestic market. While we are diversifying our business in response to the
challenges, our Group will remain cautious in expanding our production lines
and carrying out research and development projects to cater the expected
demand in the future. In the meantime, our Directors will closely monitor
the economic change, maintain a prudent and stable strategy and react
proactively to the challenges and opportunities ahead.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue was approximately RMB131.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which represented an increase of approximately RMB30.8
million, or 30.6% from approximately RMB100.5 million for the same period
in 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase of sales volume
of LED Display and Projection System as well as other products.

Cost of sales and gross profit

Our cost of sales was approximately RMB106.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which represented an increase of approximately RMB29.3
million or 38.1%, from approximately RMB76.9 million for the same period in
2020. The increase in cost of sales mainly reflected the increase in sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our gross profit increased by approximately RMB1.4 million or 6.0%, from
approximately RMB23.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB25.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
However, our gross profit margin decreased from approximately 23.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 19.1% for the same
period in 2021. The decrease was mainly because the gross profit margin of
LED Display and Projection System have dropped as a result of the decrease
in selling price in response to the keen competition.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses were approximately RMB6.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, which represented a decrease of
approximately RMB2.7 million or 30.1%, from approximately RMB8.8 million
for the same period in 2020. These expenses mainly included remuneration
for sales and marketing employees based on sales performances and
expenses relating to the marketing efforts in business promotion and
participation in exhibitions. The selling and distribution expenses was
approximately 4.7% of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021, as
compared to approximately 8.7% for the same period in 2020.

Administrative expenses

Our administration expenses were approximately RMB26.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which represented an increase of
approximately RMBO.3 million or 1.2%, from approximately RMB25.7 million
for the same period in 2020. These expenses mainly included employee
wages and salaries, depreciation and research costs. The administrative
expenses was approximately 19.8% of the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2021, as compared to approximately 25.6% for the same period
in 2020.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

Our primary use of cash is to satisfy our working capital and capital
expenditure needs. Historically, our Group’s use of cash has mainly been
financed through a combination of cash received from the sales of our
products and financial support from our Group’s related parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK D

As at 31 December 2021, our Group did not have any bank borrowings.
Going forward, we believe our liquidity requirements will be satisfied using
a combination of cash generated from operating activities, bank borrowings
and proceeds from the Listing. Our Directors believe that in the long term,
our Group’s operation will be funded by internally generated cash flows and,
if necessary, additional equity and/or debt financing.

Use of proceeds from the Listing

The Shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 21 July 2017 (the “Listing
Date”) with net proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer in
the amount of HK$93,500,000 after deducting underwriting commission and
all related listing expenses.

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the Listing Date up to
31 December 2021 is set out below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE DA

Planned
use of net
proceeds as Actual Actual
stated in the use of net balances of
Prospectus proceeds proceeds  Expected
up to up to upto timeline for
31 December 31 December 31 December  unutilized
Business Strategy 2021 2021 2021  net proceeds
Bz
—E--F BZE
+=ZA=+-H “E--F Bz
RRERMRYI +=A=+-H —BC-F
FBIE FE%E +=A=t-R XBARS
FEN FEH FEREN  REFEN
EBRE FEEAER  ERERER ERGH  BHRBRX
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEAT
Enhancement to wide ITO film B EITOEERE 43 43 - NATEA
Sales and marketing effects in the PRC RAPERHE REHTIE 8.7 8.7 - NATER
Project for full automation of production line  B&¢ANERE EBEELER 120 120 - NATER
for Smart Light-adjusting Products
Establishment and mass production of By Rt ERNEEREYR 30 30 - NATEA
domestic laser none cinema systems 25
Installation of extra-wide Production line for T B i AN ERBELEL 115 0.6 109 by the end of
Smart Light-adjusting Products 2022
—E-C-F
JERI
Installation of fully automated production ~ ZERKBINIZ B84+ ER 9.0 41 49  bytheend of
line for pressing of glass 2022
—E-CF
JERI
Working capital LEES 7.3 73 - NATER

HEREF AR AR AT
R -EEEWE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK D

The business strategies as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
30 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation of the
future market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the
Prospectus. The use of proceeds was applied in accordance with the actual
development of the market.

As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$77.7 million out of the net
proceeds from the Share Offer had been used. The unused net proceeds
have been deposited in licensed banks.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds in the manner consistent
with that set out in the Prospectus. However, the actual use of proceeds
was lower than planned use of proceeds because of the delay in automation
and installation of production lines. In response to the rapidly changing
business environment, it has taken more time than expected to look for
suitable machinery and equipment producers which could meet our
production requirements. Also, our plan of installing new production line has
been shelved due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Directors will constantly
evaluate the Group’s business strategies and may change or modify plans
against the changing market condition to attain sustainable business growth
of the Group.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our capital expenditure amounted to
approximately RMB4.9 million (2020: approximately RMB19.0 million) and
mainly arose from expenditures for purchase of production machinery.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities by total equity at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2021, our gearing ratio
remained stable at approximately 42.3% (31 December 2020: approximately
30.9%).

Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments amounting

to approximately RMB4.5 million (2020: approximately RMB4.5 million) in
respect of equity investments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no pledged deposits (2020:
RMB20,000).

Significant investments, acquisitions and disposals and future
plans for material investments or capital assets

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not make any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and hold any significant investments nor does the Group has any plan for
material investments or additions of capital assets.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and most
of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of the overseas
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Company whose functional currency
is HK$. Foreign currency exposure mainly arises from intra-company
balance denominated in HK$ as recorded by Zhuhai Singyes New Materials
Company Limited (“Zhuhai New Materials”). At 31 December 2021, Zhuhai
New Materials recorded an amount due to the Company of approximately
RMB33.5 million (2020: approximately RMB54.9 million) denominated in
HK$. If RMB strengthens/weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the profit before tax of the Group will increase/decrease
by approximately RMB1.7 million (2020: approximately RMB2.7 million),
correspondingly. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not entered
into any agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend a final dividend (2020: Nil). The actual
dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual performance of
the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board was not aware that any
shareholders of the Company had waived or agreed to any arrangement to
waive dividends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& D

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, we had a total headcount of 149 (2020: 129) full-
time employees. The remuneration package of our employees includes a
basic salary, allowances and bonuses. The various allowances cover holidays,
social security and housing contributions. We make contributions to all
mandatory social security and housing provident funds for our employees.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There
may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

BUSINESS RISK

A number of factors may affect the business, financial conditions and/or
results of operations of the Group, major risks are summarised below.

Competition in the ITO film and Smart Light-adjusting Products
industry

ITO film market

In recent years, the ITO film industry in the PRC has experienced rapid
growth with the number of market participants. However, key production
technologies, manufacturing facilities as well as market share have remained
dominated by few market participants. It is expected that more dominant
players may expand and consolidate their market share through mergers
and acquisitions as well as development of product lines. In the future it will
have to compete with more dominant players not only in terms of pricing and
customer base, but also when sourcing upstream products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Smart PDLC Products market

In the Smart PDLC Products market, the Group faces competition from other
large domestic PRC manufacturers with substantial market share as well as
new entrants to the market. There has been a rapid increase in the number
of high-end downstream users of Smart PDLC Products (such as media
companies and luxury hotels) given the increasingly broad applications of
these products. This has led to pressure on suppliers to cope with demand
through mass production, leading to the lowering of production costs as well
as increasing price competition. Furthermore, the lack of industry standards
and regulations in the PRC relating to “energy-saving” products may lead to
the production of inferior and low-quality products which could also result in
increased price competition.

Other than pricing, the Company may also need to compete from the
technological perspective in order to satisfy different customer needs. Future
profitability will largely be determined by a company’s ability to offer product
customisation and optimisation.

The Company’s ability to remain competitive in the markets in which it
operates could materially affect its market share or the sales price of its
products, which could materially affect its profitability, results of operations
and business prospects.

Reliance on brand and reputational advantages

The Group’s brand and reputation are critical to the success of its product
sales, and the Group’s brand is recognized by customers as high-quality
and reliable, which enables the Group to become a leading manufacturer of
Smart PDLC products and projection systems in the PRC in terms of market
share. If the Group fails to maintain and enhance its brand and reputation,
the Group’s sales revenue, financial results and sustainable development
may be materially and adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WK D

Overreliance on a single regional market

The Group’s products are mainly sold to domestic customers in China, so the
Group’s sales performance is highly dependent on a single regional market. If
the market demand declines, this will adversely affect the Group’s operating
performance.

Reliance on a single production base to manufacture the
Products

The Group currently carries out its entire production process at a single
production base in the PRC which is leased from a subsidiary of Shuifa
Singyes, one of the Group’s controlling shareholder. Any disruptions to the
Group’s use or occupation of its production base for whatsoever reasons
(including damage caused by floods, fires, earthquakes, typhoons and other
natural disasters or matters outside the Group’s control) may affect its ability
to produce and deliver products to the customers on a timely manner and/or
in accordance with the terms of agreements entered into with the customers.
Such disruptions will materially and adversely affect the Group’s business
and operations as well as its profitability and financial results (as efforts to
restore operations following a disruption may be costly and time-consuming).

FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) recognises the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve
effective accountability. The Directors consider that the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report (the “Relevant Period”),
except for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below
in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 22.

This corporate governance report (“Corporate Governance Report”) is
to outline the major principles of the Company’s corporate governance.
Shareholders of the Company are encouraged to make their views known
to the Group if they have issues with the Company’s corporate governance
and to directly raise any matters of concern to the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”).

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Board or Board
Committees in corporate governance function during the Relevant Period:

(a) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

(e) review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
/.IE% = \A -’F& =

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES EZETESRZZITARSTH
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities ARRERMNBBERFETELRFRIZ1TR

transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required SR - EARFUN BN GEM LT AR B 55 5.48 (&
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing 5. 671I¢?ﬁ§\JZ%,%ﬁ*:_;¢ KRl o KBS M
Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all FIBESFLARBEHR  EMEESERER

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of BEREBHEA—BEETARBIRNCE
dealings and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions HEZEFFR I Z2RERBERRITATE
adopted by the Company during the Relevant Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEe
Board composition EEEHER
During the Relevant Period, the composition of the Board is as follows: RIEEERE - EFg AR T -
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Zhang Chao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) SR (FERITEAEEH)

20

Mr. Du Peng MBS EE

(appointed on 25 January 2021) (R —F—A-THAEZE)
Mr. Nie Yuanzhou %LJHS‘EE

(appointed on 25 January 2021) (R=ZEZ—F—-A-THBEEZT)
Mr. Sun Jinli et

(resigned on 25 January 2021) (RZE=_—F—A=-+HEHE)
Mr. Tang Liwen BN ST

(resigned on 25 January 2021) (R=E=——F—AF=+HEHET)
Non-executive Director FHHITEE
Mr. Liu Hongwei AT HE S A&
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIBITESE
Ms. Pan Jianli EEBAL
Mr. Pan Jianguo EEBREAE
Dr. Li Ling FREL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEBRSE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four Board meetings and one HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE &

general meeting were held and the attendance of each director is set out as EEHEBITHAEESERL —ARRRF
follows: REURZESZHFEBAEINT
Attendance
HE
Board meetings General meeting
Name of Directors EENA E=ggl BERAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Chao SRR A 4/4 1/1
Mr. Du Peng (appointed on 25 January 2021) HMEE4E(R-_Z=—4 N/A N/A
—A-tHhBEZT) NiE A N3 A
Mr. Nie Yuanzhou EEMEE(RZZE=Z—F N/A N/A
(appointed on 25 January 2021) —A-+HRAEZMT) TEA N3 AR
Mr. Sun Jinli (resigned on 25 January 2021) H&@ixE(R-_Z-—4 4/4 0/1
—AZ+RBEEE)
Mr. Tang Liwen (resigned on 25 January 2021) 53 XA (RZZE=—4F 4/4 0/1

—A-t+HRBETE)

Non-executive Director FEHITES

Mr. Liu Hongwei BT #e 4/4 01
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFEHITES

Ms. Pan Jianli EREBEX T 4/4 0/1
Mr. Pan Jianguo EEBLAE 4/4 0/1
Dr. Li Ling FRET 4/4 0/1

During the Relevant Period, the Board has complied with the requirements RABREARE EE 2B BTGEM EMARAZ
of the GEM Listing Rules to have at least three independent non-executive T - BIBEGEM E TR ES.06E A& D

Directors who represent more than one-third of the Board and with at least TNEENEABUIFRNITES  (HEFT
one of whom possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting ANBERN=n2z—  EfFHI—BIIEHR
or related financial management expertise pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM NEFEEREFIXEBIG TS
Listing Rules. BEEER-

B SRR AR A ] 21
R -EFERE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director
(“INED”) a written annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 and 5.10 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) has assessed
the independence of each INED and the Company considers that each of
them are independent in compliance with 5.05(1) and 5.05(2) and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report. Each INED will inform
the Company in writing as soon as practicable if there is any change of
circumstances which may affect his independence. The Directors do not
have financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board considers
the current structure, size and composition of the Board is performing a
balanced and independent monitoring function on management practices
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The Directors and their
biographical details as at the date of this report are set out on pages 35 to 40
of this report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the period of 1 January 2021 to 25 January 2021, the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were held by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr.
Sun Jinli respectively. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly defined and set out in writing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

With effect from 25 January 2021, Mr. Sun Jinli resigned as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Liu Hongwei ceased to be the
Chairman, and Mr. Zhang Chao has been appointed as the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. The Company is aware of the requirement under
paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Company has built up a structure of the Board and has
developed a set of procedural rules for the meeting of the Board to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view
that this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
which can facilitate the formulation and implementation of its strategies and
decisions and enable it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes
efficiently. Moreover, the Board considers that the sufficient measures have
been taken and it will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management. As such, it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Chao is performing the roles of
both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The current Bye-laws provide that at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and that
every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

All of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
laws. The term of appointment of each Independent Non-Executive Director
has been set out in the section headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” of this
report. Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company. Up to the date of this report, no independent non-executive
Director has served the Company more than 9 years.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN THE
BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

While the Board is responsible for directing and approving the Group’s overall
strategies, the Group also has formed management teams in its business
areas, comprising both the executive Directors and senior officers of the
Group, with authority and responsibility for developing and exercising both
operational and non-operational duties. The management team members of
the Group have a wide range of skills, knowledge and experience necessary
to govern the Group’s operations. All management team members are
required to report directly to the Chairman on a regular basis to report
business performance and operational and functional issues of the Group.
This will allow the Group’s management to allocate resources more efficiently
for its decision-making and facilitate its daily operations.

The Board and the Group’s management fully appreciate their respective
roles and are committed to corporate governance. The Board is responsible
for overseeing the processes by which the management identifies business
opportunities and risks. The Board’s role is not to manage the day-to-day
business operations of the Group and the responsibility of which remains
vested in the management.

The Board has set up formal procedures for the Board’s decisions. Matters
which the Board considers suitable for delegation to its committees
are contained in the specific terms of reference of its committees. The
terms of reference clearly define the powers and responsibilities of the
Board Committees. In addition, the Board will receive reports and/or
recommendations from time to time from the Board Committees on any
matter significant to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 21 July 2017 in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. Among other things,
the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process, internal control system and risk
management system and to provide advice and recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditors.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Pan Jianli, Mr. Pan Jianguo and Dr. Li Ling. Ms. Pan Jianli is the
chairperson of the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, five meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review the Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual
financial results. Three of the meetings were attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could exchange
their views and concerns on the financial reporting process of the Group with
the auditor.

EREBRE

T —F+ - A=F+—HIIEE &
ZESCRTh G  EHNALENT
B $FERFEMEEE - ARARINERX
HFAEHLFEER=ZRE®  BEXZEEEKE
AHEZZEMAARENBEREREIRE
RAEETR -

No. of Audit Committee
Meetings attended/held

EREER
Name of Directors BEEHSR 2EHEBITRE
Ms. Pan Jianli (Chairperson) EEBLL(FE) 5/5
Mr. Pan Jianguo ERBLAE 4/5
Dr. Li Ling =St 5/5

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the financial reporting matters
with senior management and the auditors of the Company relating to the
preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021. This report has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and that adequate disclosure has been made.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of internal controls
and risk management for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such review
covered financial, operational and compliance controls and risk assessment
of the Group. The Board was satisfied that the effectiveness of the internal
controls of the Group had been properly reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 21 July
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 and
5.35 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and
senior management of our Group; review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals and benefits; and to ensure none of our Directors
determine their own remuneration. The remuneration of our Directors will be
regularly monitored by our remuneration committee to ensure that the level of
remuneration and compensation is appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Pan Jianguo, Ms. Pan Jianli and Dr. Li Ling. Mr. Pan
Jianguo is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
held a meeting to approve the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company after
reviewing of the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and assessment of individual performance of
each.
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No. of
Remuneration Committee
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FHEES
Name of Directors EEHS BREE BT
Mr. Jianguo (Chairman) EBEBELE(ERE) 11
Ms. Pan Jianli EEBL LT 1/1
Dr. Li Ling TRiEL 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 21 July 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set
out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary function of the
nomination committee is to make recommendations to the Board and senior
management regarding appointment of Directors and candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and senior management team.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the
Board is based on a range of measurable objectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due regard
to the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background, the Company considers that the Board possesses
a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgment of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board. The selection criteria for Directors are
that the candidates must have substantial experience in business relevant
to the Company, or in corporate management, or in relevant profession and
must be able to contribute effectively to the objectives of the Company. In
identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria (such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics etc.) and with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Any committee member
may propose suitable candidates for directorship for discussion and approval
by the Nomination Committee, after which the Board will consider and, if
proper, approve such nomination.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, including one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Chao and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Pan Jianguo and Dr. Li Ling. Mr. Zhang
Chao is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee held
a meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board'’s functions and responsibilities.
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No. of
Nomination Committee
Meetings attended/held

REZES
Name of Directors EEpS gEHEEBITRE
Mr. Liu Hongwei (Chairman) TR () N/A @
(resigned on 25 January 2021) (R=FE=—F—A=+HBEFT)
Mr. Zhang Chao (Chairman) KRB E(EE) 171
(appointed on 25 January 2021) (RZE=—F—AZ+HHEEZMT)
Mr. Pan Jianguo ERE S E 1/1
Dr. Li Ling FREL 1/1
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TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
all Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Ms. Pan Jianli REBRL v v 4
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lau Wai Han was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 23 June 2017. Please refer to the section headed “Biographical details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report for her biographical
information.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Lau has confirmed that she
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides to the Board explanation, information and regular
updates of the Company’s performance, financial position and prospects to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and the Board has prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The responsibility of the
external auditor is to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and to report
their opinion to the shareholders of the Company. A statement by auditor
about their reporting responsibility is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 58 to 65.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness on a periodic basis, at least
annually. The review covers all material controls, including but not limited to
financial, operational, and compliance controls. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board assessed and reviewed the risk management
policies and measures and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Group has also engaged external independent professionals to review its risk
management and internal control systems. Our Directors considered them
effective and adequate, and further enhance the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view that in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be
more cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit function annually.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable for the
services provided by the Company’s auditor are set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Statutory audit services

RMB1,340,000
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting a
transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the GEM Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.

At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEx in
a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of the
Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance best
practices.

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company.
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(b)
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Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered office in
Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

(a)

(b)
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(c) Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

Enquiry Contact:
By email: IR@syeamt.com
By post: Unit 3108, 31/F
China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
Attention:  Public Relationship

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNEREEEZREE

The Directors’ updated information is set out below. Upon specific enquiry by
the Company and confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in
this report, there is no change in the information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules since the
Company’s last published annual report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Chao (FRii), aged 49, was appointed as a Director of our Company
on 10 March 2016 and he was re-designated as an Executive Director of
our Company with effect from 21 July 2017. He has been appointed as the
Chairman, the chief executive officer and the compliance officer of our Company
since 25 January 2021. He has also been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Board since 25 January 2021. He is primarily
responsible for formulating the overall sales and marketing strategies and
overseeing the development and operations of our Group.

Mr. Zhang has been a director of Zhuhai New Materials since May 2015 and
Singyes New Materials (H.K.) Company Limited (“New Materials (H.K.)")
since June 2016.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihar Railway Transportation Employee
University with a bachelor’'s degree in July 1995. Mr. Zhang has over 15
years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He was certified
as a cost engineer in October 2001, obtained the qualification of a level one
architect in January 2006 and obtained the level one architect certificate in
December 2007. He has also obtained a patent under his name in relation to
smart photovoltaic controller hubs.

Mr. DU Peng (#:/B), aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director of our
Company on 25 January 2021, He has also been the vice president of the
Group since December 2020. He is primarily responsible for overall operation
and management of Zhuhai New Materials.

Mr. Du served as a deputy general manager of the operation department of
Zhuhai Huajin Capital Co., Ltd. (BR/8ZESE AN AR A 7)), a company
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000532), from September 2018 to November 2020; and the chief financial
officer and secretary to the board of directors of Zhuhai Higrand Technology
Co., Ltd. GREEB RN BR A F)), a company listed in National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in China (2 Bl & /N % % 15 8 38 X 47) (stock
code: 871447), from April 2015 to August 2018. From July 2007 to April
2015, he served as an accounting supervisor, a financial manager and the
secretary to the board of directors of Zhuhai Lihe Environmental Engineering
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Mr. Du obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management and a bachelor’s
degree in laws from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (& #REf 48 A
&) in 2007; and a master’s degree in business administration from Macau
University of Science and Technology in 2020. He is a Certified Internal
Auditor and a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors and a senior credit
manager (= 441z A& I2AM). He holds the qualification certificate for serving
as the secretary to the board of directors issued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange
and the qualification certificate for serving as the secretary to the board of
directors issued by National Equities Exchange and Quotations (% B /J\ b
¥R HEE E ). He has extensive experience in operational management
and financial management.

Mr. NIE Yuanzhou (F&3& /M), aged 36, was appointed as an executive Director
of our Company on 25 January 2021. He has also been the chief financial
officer of our Company since December 2020, and has overall responsibility
for the financial management of our Group.

He served as a financial manager of a subsidiary of China Shuifa Singyes
Energy Holdings Limited (“Shuifa Singyes”), a controlling shareholder of our
Company and the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 750) from July 2015 to December 2020, where he
was responsible for financial management.

Mr. Nie obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Shaoguan
University (#8 B £ B3 ) in 2009. From July 2009 to June 2015, he worked
as a project manager in Zhongtuo Zhengtai Accountant Firm Co., Ltd.
(IR IEF SRS (currently known as Zhongshen Zhonghuan (Special
General Partnership) (FERIRGFTAISEHAMEHKREBA)) and Da Hua
Certified Public Accountants (X ZE & 51 RF 5 7 FT), and was responsible for
auditing and tax related work. He holds professional qualification certificates
of Certified Public Accountant (non-practicing) in the People’s Republic of
China, tax specialist and an internal auditor. Mr. Nie has extensive experience

in financial risk management and internal control.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LIU Hongwei (24T #), aged 58, is the founder of our Group. He was
appointed as a Director of our Company on 28 November 2014 and he was
re-designated as a non-executive Director of our Company with effect from
21 July 2017. He was the Chairman of our Group and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Board from 20 July 2017 to 25 January 2021.

Mr. Liu was a director of Singyes New Materials (H.K.) from November 2014
to June 2016. He has been a director since November 2003 and further
an executive director since December 2008 of Shuifa Singyes, a controlling
shareholder of our Company and the shares of which are listed on the main
board of HKEx (stock code: 750).

Mr. Liu graduated from Wuhan Industrial University with a bachelor’s degree,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering, in July 1986. Mr. Liu is currently
the chairman of Guangdong Photovoltaic Energy System Standardization
Technology Committee, member of the Standing Committee of the Ninth
Session of Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress, and an honorary fellow at the
United International College of Beijing Normal University-Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Mr. Liu is a senior construction material engineer with over 20 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector and over 10 years of
experience in the photovoltaic power generation application sector. Mr. Liu
has registered patents under his name in the PRC regarding amorphous
silicon photovoltaic building integration and solar power generation system.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. PAN Jianli (B2 E), aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company on 6 December 2019. She is currently
the chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board.

Ms. Pan obtained her master’s degree in management from Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University (1t J K £ 3¢ % & 38 £ 1 ) in
the PRC in 2009 and her bachelor’s degree in economics from Shandong
University of Finance and Economics (LR B 48 K 2) in the PRC in 1999.
Ms. Pan is a Senior Accountant (= #R&EHAT) and a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountant. Ms. Pan has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financing.

Mr. PAN Jianguo (B#ZEl), aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company on 6 December 2019. He is currently
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and members of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board.

Mr. Pan has been the general manager of Shanxi Changan Electricity
Construction Company Limited* (BREEREZE 1 E & B R A 7)) since 2019
and has over 20 experience in business administration. He graduated from
the Northwest Light Industry Institution (F51L%E T 3 £28%) (currently known
as Shanxi University of Science & Technology (BRFERHEAE2)) in the PRC in
1994.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. LI Ling (Z%), aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company with effect from 21 July 2017. She is currently a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, and Nomination
Committee of the Board.

Dr. Li graduated from Qigihar Institute of Light Industry with a bachelor
degree in synthetic fibre in 1983. She then graduated from Dalian University
of Technology with a master degree in engineering in 1990. She later
graduated from South China University of Technology with a doctoral degree
in high molecular material in 1998. From 1983 to 1987, she worked as a
technician in a chemical research institute in Jixi City in Heilongjiang. From
1990 to 1992, she worked as a lecturer at Qigihar Institute of Light Industry.
From 1992 to 1995, she worked as an engineer in the Zhongshan branch of
China Academy of Science & Technology Development. From 1998 to 2002,
she was an associate research fellow in biomedical engineering research
institute at Jinan University. From 2002 to date, she has been a professor
and researcher in the college of science and engineering at Jinan University.
She has 25 years of experience in the field of material research, she has
obtained 8 technology patents under her name and written 4 nanotechnology
books.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LIN Jing (##&%), aged 47, has been the deputy executive general manager
of Zhuhai New Materials since March 2010 and is in charge of product
quality and human resources management of our Company.

Ms. Lin graduated with a secretarial specialty from the Minjiang Vocational
University in July 1995 and later obtained a bachelor's degree in business
administration from Shenzhen University in June 2010. She was the
secretary to the general manager, material control manager and information
centre manager of Asia Simulation Control System Engineering (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd. between July 1995 and April 2001. She was the human resources
manager and assistant to deputy manager of operations of AF Technology
Limited between 2001 and 2008. Ms. Lin has over 20 years of experience in
business administration.
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Ms WU Qin, aged 38, has been the head of the research and development
department of Zhuhai New Materials since January 2015 and is responsible
for product development and technology innovation management.

She graduated with a bachelor degree in physics from Shandong Normal
University in 2008, and obtained a master of science degree from Hunan
University in 2020, majoring in nano physics and devices, including thin film
materials, thin-film transistor and solar cells. She is familiar with various ways
of vacuum coating and has developed photoelectric thin film material with
high quality and a series of nanometer photoelectron devices. She has joined
Zhuhai New Materials since 2010 and is responsible for the development
and craftsmanship of ITO film, blue film and light-adjusting films. She is
a professional senior engineer specialised in polymer chemistry and has
obtained 5 invention patents and over 20 utility model patents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LAU Wai Han (21£1#), aged 34, was appointed as the company secretary
of our Company on 23 June 2017 and is responsible for overall company
secretarial matters of our Group. She obtained a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong
in December 2009. She has over 10 years of experience in the areas of
accounting, finance and auditing, and has been a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2013.

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act as
an exempted company with limited liability on 14 November 2014. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company has established a place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F China Merchants Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
was registered under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) on 18 April 2016. Each of Mr. Zhang Chao and
Ms. Lau Wai Han has been appointed as the authorised representative of
the Company for the acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf
of our Company in Hong Kong. The address for service of process on the
Company in Hong Kong is the same as its principal place of business in Hong
Kong set out above.

As the Company is incorporated in Bermuda, it operates subject to the
Companies Act and to its constitution, which comprises the Memorandum of
Association and the Bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group carries out
research and development on, and manufactures and sells ITO film, Smart
PDLC products, LED Display and Projection System. The Group is one of the
few integrated manufacturers in the PRC which produces and sells ITO film
as well as a range of related downstream products. The Group principally
operated in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the company for the year ended 31 December
2021 has been set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report. Discussions and information therein forms part of this
Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s result for the year ended 31 December 2021 and its financial
position as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on page 66 to 183 of this report. And the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2021 is set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors did not recommend a final dividend (2020: Nil). The actual
dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual performance of
the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 70 of this report and in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the applicable law of
Bermuda, was approximately RMB11,583,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 184 of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers consist of domestic touch-screen device
manufacturers, construction companies, contractors of developers, and
commercial users. For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to
the Group’s top five customers and its largest customer accounted for
approximately 36% and 19% of total revenue, respectively.

The Group procures a majority of the raw materials from third party suppliers
based in the PRC who are agents of overseas manufacturers, and procure
certain raw materials (including ITO target, protective film, PDLC and
projectors) from PRC manufacturers. For the year ended 31 December
2021, purchases from the Group’s top five suppliers and its largest supplier
accounted for approximately 40% and 12% of total purchases, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, their close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), or any of the shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Chao (Chairman)
Mr. Du Peng

(appointed on 25 January 2021)
Mr. Nie Yuanzhou

(appointed on 25 January 2021)
Mr. Sun Jinli

(resigned on 25 January 2021)
Mr. Tang Liwen

(resigned on 25 January 2021)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Pan Jianli

Mr. Pan Jianguo
Dr. Li Ling

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

FEEFRHAER

AEBEZEEBERNERRGHRES 2
$NF] - AEEEBERALREERFE - &
E-E-—E+-A=+—HILFE  HX
EERARFREGARFEZHERE D BIG
AU A #)36% 2 19%

RNEBAMRPENE = HEERE (tEAE
SLEENRE ) EBEMHRBY RME - [
RASENEHREEREEE T RME (R
FRITOSEH - (RFEJR - PDLCR IR &) - BE
T+ -_A=+—BIEE BL&E
B hAAHERRESANEERRES
I ERIB4AEE 2 #40% K 12% ©

REBEEZEZ—F+ZA=+—HLFE
MEEE  FENEEHEAT(EERGEM
EWRAD AR AR R (BLE B AT A
EARRBEITRASH U E)RNAELEE A
REP S HER A Tz -

o2

BE_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—HLFEKE
EAREAPAARNESDOT -

BITES

REBSCHE(EE)

HESEE

(R —F—A-+RHAEZT)
EEM G E

(EAfjf F—A-+HBEZMT)
(EA474 F—-A-+HRHAET)
/%_LX?EE
(RZE=—F—AZ+HHET)

FHTES
Bl
BYFHTES
ERELL

EEEELE
FREL

HEREF AR AR AT
R -EEEWE

43



44

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWES

Mr. Sun Jinli and Mr. Tang Liwen resigned due to their other business
commitments. In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr. Zhang Chao, Ms. Pan Jianli and Mr. Pan Jianguo will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-elections.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhang Chao, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company commencing from 23 June 2017 for a term of three
years unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein. The service
contract has been renewed for another three years upon its expiration
as recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board. Under the terms of the service contract, the service contract may
be terminated by not less than one month prior written notice or otherwise
served by either party on the other.

Each of Mr. Du Peng and Mr. Nie Yuanzhou, the executive Directors, have
signed entered into a service contract with the Company commencing from
25 January 2021 for a term of three years unless terminated in accordance
with the terms therein. Under the terms of the service contracts, the service
contracts may be terminated by not less than one month prior written notice
or otherwise served by either party on the other.

Mr. Liu Hongwei, a non-executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing 21 July 2017.
The appointment letter has been renewed for another three years upon its
expiration as recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by
the Board. Under the terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment
may be terminated by not less than two months’ prior written notice or
otherwise served by either party on the other.

Ms. Pan Jianli, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
6 December 2019. Under the terms of the letter of appointment, the
appointment may be terminated by not less than one month’s prior written
notice or otherwise served by either party on the other.

Mr. Pan Jianguo, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
6 December 2019. Under the terms of the letter of appointment, the
appointment may be terminated by not less than one month’s prior written
notice or otherwise served by either party on the other.
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Dr. Li Ling, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing 21 July
2017. The appointment letter has been renewed for another three years upon
its expiration as recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved
by the Board. Under the terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment
may be terminated by not less than two months’ prior written notice or
otherwise served by either party on the other.

The term of service of a Director is subject to the provisions on retirement
by rotation of Directors as set out in the Bye-laws. None of our Directors has
entered into a service contract with any member of the Group (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements. The emoluments paid to senior management (excluding
the Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2021 were within the
following bands:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 17 October 2017, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grant Share
Options to the any Eligible Person (who is (i)(a) any director or proposed
director (whether executive or non-executive, including any independent
non-executive director), employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of, or (b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any substantial shareholder or any company
controlled by a substantial shareholder (a “Category A Eligible Person”);
or (ii) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group (a “Category B Eligible Person”) and,
for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes
of participants, collectively the “Eligible Person”) to subscribe at a price
calculated in accordance with the Share Option Scheme for such number of
Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
Share Options to the selected Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the growth and development of
the Group.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at 17 October 2017, being
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted (i.e. 480,000,000
Shares).

On 31 January 2018, options to subscribe for a total of 21,000,000 shares
with a nominal amount of US$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted under the Scheme at the exercise price of HK$1.16 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 800,000 options (2020:
6,410,000) were forfeited due to the resignation of grantees and no options
(2020: 700,000) were surrendered by a grantee. As at the date of this Report,
7,790,000 share options has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
to entitle the holders of these share options to subscribe for a total 7,790,000
Shares, representing 1.498% of the issued Shares of the Company.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible Person(s) (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding Share Options), in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue,
unless (i) a circular is despatched to the Shareholders; (i) the Shareholders
approve the grant of the Share Options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in
this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant Eligible Person and his associates shall
abstain from voting. The number and terms (including the exercise price) of
Share Options to be granted to such Eligible Person(s) must be fixed before
Shareholders’ approval.
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Time of exercise of option

A Share Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the Share Option is granted as the Board may
determine in granting the Share Options and expiring at the close of business
on such date as the Board may determine in granting the Share Options but
in any event shall not exceed ten (10) years from the date of grant (which
is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the grant of the Share Options is
accepted).

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of Share Options must be accepted within thirty (30)
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of the Share Options to the Company on acceptance of the
offer for the grant of Share Options is HK$1.00.

Exercise price per Share for the exercise of a Share Option

The exercise price per Share payable on the exercise of a Share Option is
to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant (which is deemed
to be the date of Board meeting for approving the grant of Options), which
must be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
(5) business days immediately preceding the date of offer of grant, provided
that the exercise price per Share shall in no event be less than the nominal
amount of the Share.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing on 17 October 2017, the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted by Shareholders in general meeting, and shall expire at
the close of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof unless terminated earlier by Shareholders in general meeting.
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The Company may by resolution in general meeting or the Board may at any
time terminate the Share Option Scheme and in such event no further Share
Option shall be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Share Option granted prior to the termination or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. Share Options
granted prior to such termination at the time of termination shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

The movements of outstanding share options under the Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

ARFRAIEBRRAGBBIRERIEEE

R TR HERB ST 81 2 RSN 4 15
MEREZRN  RASHEBRESIKLE
Al R Z A BARENTRE - SRBER
REET &I 2 R E 2 T DA B R &%
AR ERIR IE AT 2 BB B ) I AR R B A e
FHEIER AT -

REE-_BE-_—F+-_A=+—HILFEH
BT MARITERIE 2 8T

Number of shareﬁoptions
B
Exercise At Granted Exercised Forfeited  Surrendered Lapsed At
Exercisable price per 1 January during the during the during the during the during the 31 December
Category of participants ~ Date of grant ~period share 2021 year year year year year " 202%
\:g:_
turf /= /= mZg:_i il /= N, + >l —+:H
SREER RiEAH i) SREE -A-B  ERCRY Rl Rk ERnE ER&R =t-f
(HKS) 000 00 00 00 00 00 000
(A7) T T T T T T T
Employees 31/01/2018 31/01/2021- 1.16 %3 - = (266) = - 697
In aggregate 300012028
&
it 31/01/2022- 116 93 - - (267) - - 6%
30/01/2028
3100112023 1.16 %4 - S (266) S - 697
30/01/2028
Sub-total
Nt 2890 - = (800) S - 2,090
Others* 31/01/2018 3100112021~ 1.16 1,900 - - - - - 1,900
In aggregate 30001/2028
B
At 31001/2022- 1.16 1,900 - - - - - 1,900
3000112028
31/01/2023- 1.16 1,900 - - - - - 1,900
30/01/2028
Sub-total
gt 5,700 - - - - - 5,700
Total
) 8,590 - S (800) S - 7790
* Others include (i) individuals for the time being seconded to work for, any * HieE)ERARSASEEIMKE AT
member of the Group or any substantial shareholder or any company controlled S+ ERR Sk R+ EREIFHIR EA A
by a substantial shareholder, and (i) person or entity that provides research, AITEMEA : Ri)mAEBEEMKE R
development or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy, AR - FAE S E Mo SR Sk (] R
professional or other services to any member of the Group. - B FEEMRBHATHERE -

No participants were granted options in excess of the individual limit pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the following
persons have or are deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short position
in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under
the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”) or which were recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company or any other members of the Group:
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Long position in the Shares RRGONEE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held shareholding
BREREBE B0, MY sl & B BAERES T
(Note 4)
(M7E4)
Top Access Management Limited Beneficial owner 324,324,325 62.37%
(“Top Access”) BERBEAA
China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 324,324,325 62.37%
Limited (“Shuifa Singyes”) ~ (Note 1)
REKEEEREE AR AR R EE R (ML)
(TkEeHZ )
Water Development (HK) Interest in a controlled corporation 324,324,325 62.37%
Holdings Co Limited (Note 2)
(“Water Development (HK) ) LB (MFE2)
7}@5@‘%(%&%)? RERA
(IkEEBE(ES) D
Shuifa Energy Group Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 324,324,325 62.37%
(“Shuifa Energy”) (Note 2)
KEREIREE AR AR ([KERER]) e A E R (MEE2)
Shuifa Group Co., Ltd (“Shuifa Group”) Interest in a controlled corporation 324,324,325 62.37%
KEEEBRAT([KEELEEHR]) <jmm2
SymEE R (E2)
AMATA Limited Beneficial owner 40,000,000 7.69%
EmBEAA
Mr. Luo Jingxi Interest in a controlled corporation 40,000,000 7.69%
ERFEREAE _ (Note 3)
RiEEE R (ME3)
Kunlun Holdings Group Limited Beneficial owner 26,021,206 5.00%
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Notes:

The entire issued share capital of Top Access is legally and beneficially owned
by Shuifa Singyes, which is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Top
Access under Part XV of the SFO.

Water Development (HK) is the legal and beneficial owner of 1,687,008,585
shares of Shuifa Singyes and has a security interest in 180,755,472 shares
of Shuifa Singyes, representing approximately 66.92% and 7.17% of the
issued share capital in Shuifa Singyes respectively. Water Development (HK)
is beneficially and wholly-owned by Shuifa Energy, which is in turn beneficially
and wholly-owned by Shuifa Group. As such, each of Water Development (HK),
Shuifa Energy and Shuifa Group is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which Shuifa Singyes is interested (through its shareholding in Top Access)
under Part XV of the SFO.

AMATA Limited is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Luo Jingxi, Mr. Hua
Jianjun, Mr. Zhong Qibo and Mr. He Qiangmin as to 39%, 27%, 20% and 14%
respectively. Mr. Luo Jingxi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
AMATA Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 520,000,000 Shares in issue as at
31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, there was no person or corporation other than the Directors and the

Chief
Chief

Executives whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Executives’ interests and short positions in Shares, underlying Shares

and debenture of the Company and its associated corporations” below,
had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company that was required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 or Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, are as follows:

Long positions in the shares of Shuifa Singyes (Note 1)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of total registered
Name of Director(s) Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held share capital
L AR A 48 5
EEME B, REEME FrisR & B ZHHE D
(Note 4)
(KizE4)
Mr. Liu Hongwei Interest of a controlled corporation 203,802,750 8.01%
(Note 2)
2T RiEEE g (MEE2)
Beneficial intgrest (Note 3) 1,500,000 0.06%
B (MFE3)
Total 203,538,750 8.07%
i@zt
Notes: MiEE
1. Shuifa Singyes is listed in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock 1. IKEEFLEEABE I FTEMR BT - IRIDRIRA -

code: 750. Shuifa Singyes is a holding company of the Company pursuant to the
SFO.

2. 202,038,750 shares of Shuifa Singyes are held by Strong Eagle Holdings
Limited, whose share capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei (the non-
executive Director of the Company). Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be interested
in these shares by virtue of the SFO.

3. Such interest represents the shares awards of Shuifa Singyes granted to Mr.
Liu Hongwei under a share award plan as announced by Shuifa Singyes on 29
December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, no share of Shuifa Singyes under
the share award plan has been vested in Mr. Liu Hongwei.

4. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 shares in issue of
Shuifa Singyes as at 31 December 2021.

750 $ETJ§M%&Hﬁhfwﬁl UNELELE VRIS
PACIEE 2N

2. 202,038,750 0% 7Kk 2 B 3 % 17 EEStrong Eagle
Holdings lelted%ﬁ MmAREIERITE
= 2| 41 # % & #5 A& Strong Eagle Holdings
Limited R 48 2 53%  1R#5 & 5 & SR &M -
BIAT SRR ARNZER D PR AR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise required pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests ad Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have
any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s
business was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

No permitted indemnity provision existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not make any
charitable donations (2020: Nil).
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as set out under the
heading “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company or subsisting during the year ended
31 December 2021.

INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Shuifa Singyes, one of the controlling shareholders (as defined under
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, has entered into the deed of non-
competition dated 23 June 2017 (the “Deed of Non-competition”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were set out in the Prospectus. Pursuant
to the Deed of Non-competition, Shuifa Singyes has undertaken to our
Company (for ourselves and as trustee for each of our subsidiaries) that with
effect from the Listing Date, it shall not, and shall procure each of its close
associates (other than our Group) shall not, whether on its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company and whether
directly or indirectly, whether as a shareholder, director, employee, partner,
agent or otherwise (other than being a director or shareholder of our Group
or members of our Group), carry on or be engaged in, directly or indirectly,
a business which is, or be interested or involved or engaged in or acquire
or hold any rights or interest or otherwise involved in (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward
or otherwise) any business which competes or may in any aspect compete
directly or indirectly with the business or which is similar to the business
currently and may from time to time be engaged by our Group (including but
not limited to the production and sale and businesses ancillary to any of the
foregoing).

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report,
none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company or their
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any
business or interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

The controlling shareholders of the Company have confirmed to the Company
that during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, Shuifa Singyes and its respective close associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) have complied with the undertakings contained in the

Deed of Non-competition.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements headed “Related
party transactions and balances” of this report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to our Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director of
the Company or his connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed
any listed securities of the Company during the year end 31 December 2021.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Talent is the core of the Group’s operations, recruiting the most suitable
talent for each position is one of the Group’s important tasks. The Group
strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations and establishes a human
resources management system to protect the legitimate rights and interests
of all employees.

We maintain on-going communication with our customers to ensure
understanding and satisfaction of their demand and expectations, as well as
to constantly improve our services by knowing their satisfactory rates.

As a manufacturing company, the quality of the Group’s products and even
its reputation depend largely on the quality of the raw materials. In order to
ensure the quality of suppliers and maintain a healthy and orderly supply
chain system, the Group has committed to improving the relationship
management of suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, we had a total headcount of 149 (2020: 129) full-
time employees. The remuneration package of our employees includes a
basic salary, allowances and bonuses. The various allowances cover holidays,
social security and housing contributions. We make contributions to all
mandatory social security and housing provident funds for our employees.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Directors believe that the Group has implemented sufficiently robust
internal control policies and procedures to ensure the on-going compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group, the Directors and the
senior management. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
date of this report, as far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied
in material aspects with applicable laws and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group pursues best practices for the environment and focuses on the
impact of the Group’s business on the environment and natural resources.
In addition to complying with environmental laws and international
standards and appropriate protection of the natural environment, the
Group also integrates the concept of environmental protection into its
internal management and daily operation activities to achieve the goal of
environmental sustainability.

For details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2021 which will be published around the end of May 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no connected
transaction or continuing connect transaction between the Group and its
connected persons (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) which were
subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the GEM Listing Rules. No transactions as
set out in the “Related party transactions and balances” in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company would publish an announcement to inform Shareholders and
potential investors about the closure period of the register of members for the
eligibility to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 were audited by KPMG which will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Ernst & Young were the auditors of the Company for the financial years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020. Due to the relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC in respect of the
restrictions on the term of continuous audit services that an accounting firm
can provide to state-owned enterprises and its subsidiaries, Ernst & Young
retired and KPMG was appointed as the auditors of the Company effective
upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company dated
21 May 2021. The Board confirms that there were no disagreements or
unresolved matters between the Company and Ernst & Young and there were
no other matters in connection with the change of auditors that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 April
2021 and the supplemental announcement of the Company dated 21 May
2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant events affecting the Group, which
have occurred subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report.

By order of the Board

Zhang Chao
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes New
Materials Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 183 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BLRRE S MR 17 K2 3 G FTIR ©

BREEZSERE Bz BT NAEEBEEZSER
Expected credit loss allowances of trade receivables
B oW EREAE FE XA

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.3.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross trade receivables
amounted to RMB160,866,000, against which an allowance
of RMB36,161,000 for expected credit losses (ECLs) was
recorded, which was material to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H  EXENESFEKFIER
XA ARM160,866,0007T - I 5kt 8%15 TR EA{E A B R B
ARH36,161,0007T - f EEEGEVBEMKBEEK -

Management measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. Trade receivables are grouped according to
shared credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss rates
take into account the ageing of trade receivable balances and
the historical payment, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the customers, and an assessment of both current market
conditions and forward-looking information.
EREABENEHEMEREANSEIRRAEE - &
FREW TR AR ER AR D o MEHEAETE
KB B RUGRIA AR BRI SOBE N BN - PR ER
RIELFE - WHIRE TR RATE &R -

We identify ECL allowances of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because determining the level of the loss allowance
requires the exercise of significant management judgement,
which is inherently subjective.
BMARTEZHRYGFIENTERACEHRERBERHARERS
B FRRECELABREFTEEEETEAE LBFENE
KA -

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for trade
receivables included the following:

B E S EWFIEN TR E R BB EN TN EF 21
TAHIRIE

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimating the credit loss allowance and
accounting for such credit loss allowance;

B R0 AT (A B RME RIS - EIRUE &9 = E AR
BRRET - BB MGEIER R - RIEFHERBEREH - I
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° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standard;
2ERTEERNRE - B BEXEMEFERE
REHEHBUR

o obtaining an understanding of the key parameters
and assumptions that management uses in its
implementation of the ECL model, including the basis
of segmentation of the trade receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics of customers and
the historical credit loss data used in management’s
estimate of loss rates;
REEREENEREHREABRIAEARERANEESR
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Key audit matter

RRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz EFNAEERRERER

assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimate of loss allowances by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the trade
receivables ageing reports and the historical credit loss
data and evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current market
conditions and forward-looking information;
BRESRERENEZEATANER - EheEA
FE 5 R UHIE BR e S MR S AR K BUR ) 2ERE
1t FHEEREEHRAREBNMEGRRSE - Rtk
BEGERIBRBEASRIERE TN KA I &R E
EHEEE

inspecting correspondence with customers for the latest
progress of settling the outstanding amounts and the
credit status of these debtors by performing company
search, on a sample basis;

MBI HAEHEE LR EEFIEMEREREE S HE
& - WEB R A SR EEHEARNGERRR

re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as 31 December 2021 based on the Group’s ECL
allowance policies; and

ER BESENEHRERBABEDR  EFER
TS+ A=+—BrBEXEE &

assessing the appropriateness of financial statement
disclosures regarding the Group’s exposure to credit
risk.

FHEER ESREAEEERRRENMBHRAKRER
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREREE Bz &t EEBRREREE
Impairment of goodwill
R E

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.3.

B2ER A MBS HRR ML 15 M2 3 EET R »

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded an amount of
goodwill of RMB7,165,000.
RZEB-_—F+ZA=+—8 "
7,165,0007T °

EEEESEHEARRE

Management performed an assessment of impairment of
goodwill annually as required by IAS 36. No impairment
charge has been recorded against goodwill in the current
year.
EIRECIRBIR @t R E3698 2 SR E L BT EERE
AR - AREE W MEFEEHEBNRERS

In performing the impairment assessment, a discounted cash
flow forecast was prepared for each CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated. The preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts requires significant assumptions with respect
to growth rate of revenue, the gross profit margins and the
discount rate, which were subjective and involved significant
judgments.
POEITRIERMER - ESEEMOENR ©ELEEURRA
RINSRETEA - FRARIRSRETBAFZFE AN KR
BEE  EFNXRMBRXNEAREZ - Mt EREBEEE
WRERHR

We identified assessing impairment of goodwill as a key
audit matter because the impairment assessment involves
forecasting future cash flows by management which is
complex and inherently uncertain and subjective.
BMREHBRERBRETFR  RARRENGSLE
BEELEMAARE F T EERETBOARRRERETRE
Al o

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

B S BEERENEHEFERE TSR

° assessing management’s identification of CGUs and
the allocation of assets and liabilities to each CGU
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
SERTETEUNRE ATABTEBHREELE

MHEAARMSRCEFBEMETEERBEND

B

° evaluating the key assumptions adopted in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including the revenue growth rates and the gross profit
margins during the forecast periods, with reference to
the business plan approved by the Board of Directors,
our understanding of the business and available
industry information;
2EEZ AN EBFEIARRME ER RAT151T
FERRIRER - FTERMRRBEIRIR & 7 2 BRI FTER
MM EZ2/HE - BEREARENKREERERER
=

° with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
evaluating the methodologies and key parameters used
by the Group and the discount rate applied were within
the range adopted by other companies operating in the
same industry;
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Key audit matter

BRELEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz ETNAEERREREE

° comparing the actual results for the current year
with management’s forecast in the previous year in
order to assess the reliability of historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process and whether there
was any indication of management bias;
EBRAFEERERETFOEERETRR - LS
EREBREARENERERSAISERES A EM
BERETR
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° performing sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast and
considering the possibility of error or management bias;
Eﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ,émbgiﬁ E‘Jﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁ%fgj;n _?}ﬁl@?’l‘iﬁﬁ !
RZEBFEHERIERERERNTEEM

o evaluating the reasonableness of the financial statement
disclosures regarding goodwill impairment test with
reference to prevailing accounting standards.
SERITEHER - SHEEREERERFH T R
KMBEEEAHE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

FHRAFANEMER (FS

WRRZBEEREBRID)

S

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda of Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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B N A% B AW R

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Guen Kin Shing.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEmkEMAEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZTE=—F+=-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARETT AREFTT
REVENUE A 4 131,279 100,529
Cost of sales SHE R (106,242) (76,907)
Gross profit ES| 25,037 23,622
Other income and gains HAb g A B ez 5 12,917 5,658
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R MY (6,127) (8,768)
Administrative expenses TR (26,026) (25,702)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment Z 5 R IAE CREEE),
loss on trade receivables BB R R 6 (25,208) 2,979
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 6 (533) (388)
Foreign exchange gain PE 5 e 6 1,510 3,506
Other expenses HAupz (2,440) (1,413)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI EE 6 (20,870) (506)
Income tax credit RS HiE % 9 2,893 567
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(EEB), R8T (17,977) 61
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS: Hit 2 EAE -
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or ARG BRI ET D EEER
loss in subsequent periods: ZIER :
Exchange differences on translation of BB RS TRR 2 [E K =58
financial statements (1,275) (3,496)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEELHEBERE
FOR THE YEAR (19,252) (3,435)

66 China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReBEakHEMEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T=-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T ARETTT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: AN AL B (B1B), 5 F)
Equity shareholders of the Company R AR R (18,211) 584
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M 234 (523)
(17,977) 61
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ITATEEEE(EE),
attributable to: IS 4aEE -
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG 2 S (19,486) (2,912)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 234 (523)
(19,252) (3,435)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BR(ER) BF
Basic and diluted EARRES 10 RMB(0.035) RMB0.001
AEK#(0.035)7T AR#0.0017TC
The notes on pages 73 to 183 form part of these financial statements. F73EFISIEM W T BRI FT T EHRERE
F—=5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB AR O 3R

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARETT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R 11 70,314 73,074
Equity investments designated at fair value & FZ AP ET A LM 2 E
through other comprehensive income s 2 BRI E 12 5,000 5,000
Prepayments in advance TEfS5RIE 18 367 1,754
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 13 6,902 3,762
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 12,390 6,319
Goodwill EE 15 7,165 6,448
Total non-current assets JEMENE ELRE 102,138 96,357
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 16 24,048 26,479
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 70 & fE N 15 17 138,987 145,146
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfHZK « %24 I E b fE Ui 7118 18 24,038 29,728
Pledged bank balances BRI T 19 297 10,054
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEYD 19 26,757 8,293
Total current assets BN EELREE 214,127 219,700
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaE
Trade payables B S RIE 20 40,084 22,909
Other payables and accruals HAb e FRIE R IERTE A 21 34,793 37,086
Lease liabilities HESE 14 1,992 2,803
Tax payable FERTHRIR 1,962 1,913
Provision for product warranties EmE R 22 1,169 737
Total current liabilities mENBEREE 80,000 65,448
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 134,127 154,252
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 236,265 250,609

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E MR &

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARBTT ARBFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkREBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 14 10,997 4,922
Deferred income R A 23 3,029 4,235
Total non-current liabilities ERB A ELTE 14,026 9,157
NET ASSETS FEE 222,239 241,452
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Issued capital B EITIRA 24 35,415 35,415
Reserves [ 26 182,281 201,093
Total equity attributable to equity A RE R R (G i e
shareholders of the Company 217,696 236,508
Non-controlling interests VIR 4,543 4,944
TOTAL EQUITY HEERS 222,239 241,452
Approval and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March BEGR_T__FA T BA#ETE
2022. RETIE -
Mr. Zhang Chao Mr. Du Peng
REEE Pt
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 73 to 183 form part of these financial statements. E73EFIEMM B E I HIRKE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n\/-_l_\

*I—\/

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-ZF

4=4

S\ o

EJ B

——F+ZA=t+—ALEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADTREAEL
Share Statutory Share Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Contributed reseres option Capital ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus fund reserve Teserves reserve profits Total interests equity
BEf ) R BhE EiRE FER
i HER  HARR fife i EARE i REER @it BE  EzEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 24) (note 26(a)) ~ (note 26(b)) ~ (note 26(c))
(Bizzos) (Fio6la)  (Wisk2e))  (Msk26(0))
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-2£-5-R 35415 75,163 6,341* 12,381* 3724 55,567 2,141* 53732 244 464 5467 249,931
(Loss)/proft for the year REE(EE)/ &) - - - - - - - 584 584 (623) 61
Other comprehensive loss for ~— FAEHZAEE :
the year:
Exchange differences on BEBRHRE L
translation of financial B EE
statements - - - - - - (3,4%) - (3,4%) - (3,49)
Total comprenensie lossfor A2 AEEEER
the year - - - - - - (3,4%) 584 (2912) (523) (3,435)
Transfer to contributed surplus**  BAZHABH - (10,000) 10,000 = = - - - - - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ EREREEF| - - - 835 - - - (835) - - -
Equity-setiled share option WEREE  BRERS
arrangements (nofe 25) (Fiz¥25) - - - - (286) - - - (286) - (286)
Final 2019 dividend declared ~ E% =S NERSHRE - - (4758) - - - - - (4758) - (4758)
At 31 December 2020 e 23
+ZA=t-H 35415 65,163 11,583* 13,216* 3438* 55,567+ (1,39%)* h3481* 236,508 4,944 241,452
At 1 January 2021 W=8=-£-5-A 35415 65,163* 11,583* 13,216* 3,438* 55,567* (1,355)* 53,481* 236,508 4,944 241,452
(Loss)/proft for the year REE(FR)/ &1 - - - - - - - (1821 821 B4 (17977)
Other comprehensive loss for —~— FREMZEEE :
the year:
Exchange differences on HENERRL
ranslation of financial EiER
statements - - - - - - (1,275) - (1,275) - (1,275)
Total comprehensive lossfor M2 ABEEE
the year - - - - - - (1,275) (18,211) (19,486) 234 (19,252)
Transfer from retained profits ~ E&BREEF| - - - 90 - - - (90) - - -
Acquisition of Non-controlling ~ RERSEIARRIER (Ff:428)
interest (note 28) - - - - - 157 - - 157 (157) -
Acquisiton of subsidiaries kB AR - - - - - 151 - - 151 (478) (327)
Equity-setiled share option NEREE ERER
arangements (nofe 25) (Fiz¥25) - - - - 366 - - - 366 - 366
At 31 December 2021 W& ff
ZR=1- 35415 65,163* 11,583* 13,306* 3,804* 55,875* (2,630)*  35,180* 217,696 4,543 222,239

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB182,281,000
(2020: RMB201,093,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*x Pursuant to a resolution passed at the general meeting held on 19 June 2020,
an amount of RMB 10,000,000 was transferred from the share premium account
to the contributed surplus. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a
company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

The notes on pages 73 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEBHENER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT=-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T T AREFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeETTE
Loss before tax BRAATE TR (20,870) (506)
Adjustments for: FELAT -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 11 12,345 12,860
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENTE 14(a) 2,235 1,986
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment B S W RIEREEE,
loss) on trade receivables CREEERD) 17 25,208 (2,979)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains, net REIREH Wz - F5E (1,166) (3,303)
Equity-settled share option expense, DA E 2 EARER S
net of reversal B EE 25 366 (286)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWHE  BEAREEE
plant and equipment & 6 (34) (1)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (141) (173)
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 14(b) 533 388
Deferred income released to profit or loss B B2 RIEIEU S 5 (3,969) (3,680)
14,507 4,306
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL(35n) 2,995 (7,248)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FEWRIE I FE Y= BR8N (18,325) (10,513)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR - e REMEWGRIE
deposits and other receivables B, (Hhn) 7,414 (4,441)
Increase in trade payables H 5 FE R I N 17,168 3,723
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and  E-fth < 7k I8 [ fE =+ 2 A OB
accruals ),/ 10 (10,998) 1,253
Increase in provision for product warranties, & Sh/E(REEL I - F5E
net 432 154
Increase in amounts due from related UK B33 5 RIS N
parties (735) (222)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FEH R E A BEE I, CRid)
related parties 2,361 (1,192)
Receipt of government grants related to WHR 7 2 18 B #E 8 2 BUT 48 B
income 23 800 =
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KL% KHE(FIR)EE 15,619 (14,180)
Income tax paid BT ATIS R (199) (2,433)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFE (FTRBRS
operating activities HBEE 15,420 (16,613)

B R R R AR A T
B -GEEHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRERER
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZE=-—F+-A=+—HILFE
2021 2020
—BE--F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥TT AREFIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchases of items of property, plantand B EY¥ - KERREER
equipment (5,987) (5,478)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from  FEUREAE 7 I8 (32 H0), w4
related parties (1,423) (6,318)
Decrease in pledged deposits BEEBFRORL 9,757 2,484
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HE&EWE - HER&REEE 2
plant and equipment Fi{S s 500 78
Receipt of government grants related to assets YxEN & 48 78 2 BT 4 B 23 1,963 1,046
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BATEFABSEZEHEE
through profit or loss Va - 5,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WEEMTB A A - HERATIEE
acquired Re 30(c) 240 =
Interest received BUHFE 141 173
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETEHHE(FTA)ERE
investing activities FEE 5,191 (3,015)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Principal portion of lease payments HERNFKOEEE D (3,042) (916)
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEBRENFEHD (533) (388)
Dividends paid BERRE - (5,082)
Increase in amounts due to related parties &1~ 78 EH RIELE N 1,535 7,369
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE(FIA) FrEHE
financing activities FE (2,040) 983
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RER|ESEYEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R E5E 18,571 (18,645)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HB®HREREAS
£EY 8,293 26,932
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JMNEE R &85 & %58 (107) 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTt=ZA=+—HHELE
AT 31 DECEMBER REZEY 26,757 8,293
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RE&RHESZEYHEEDIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances (note 19) & KIRTTEE# (FTFELQ) 26,757 8,293
The notes on pages 73 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FI3EFISIEMM BRI EM SRR E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Center, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the sale and installation
of Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) film, and the research and development,
production, sale and installation of Smart Polymer-Dispersed Liquid
Crystals (“Smart PDLC”) products, Light Emitting Diode (“LED”)
Display and Projection System in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the parent company, the intermediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company are Top Access Management Limited (“Top
Access”), China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (“Shuifa
Singyes”) and Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. (“Shuifa Group”), respectively.
Top Access was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Shuifa
Singyes was incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Shuifa Group was incorporated in the PRC.

B 75 ¥R 3R By &

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

NEAREEER

PR EEMEHERER AR ([ARQ
Al ARBEREEMRIHERAR
R A] HY EF % 35 BR 3 3k 7% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda > ANA &)= B & 2y
REBE T EF 168-2005 5=+ L1
ERAAE31E3108E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEAIREEER(E)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of

FRMEARZER

AARIMB AR ZFBNT

incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and Registered equity attributable
Name place of operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
FEmRL,
R AH AT,
8 REXHH AR EEEo TEEH
Direct Indirect
B &
Singyes New Materials (H.K.) Hong Kong US$1 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited 28 November 2014 1% REZR
(“New Materials (H.K.)") B
BREEIRBRAR —TmE
([E&EE]) +—A=tNR
Huabei Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
EEERARAA 23 March 2018 10,000/ 7T REER
BiE
—T-N\F
=A-t+=R
Zhuhai Singyes New Materials The PRC RMB62.5 million - 100 Research,

Company Limited® 31 March 2010 ARB625EET manufacture, sale
(“Zhuhai New Materials”) i and installation of
WEREFM R ER AR “Z-TF photovoltaic products
([EREaH e =R=1—H izt - 2E  HER

TEHRER

Yan'an Singyes New Materials The PRC RMB20 million - 100  Research, manufacture,
Company Limited 1 December 2017 ARE20EET sale and installation of
(“Yan'an New Materials”) HE new materials

TR EEMM B ER AR —T+F izt - 2E  HER
([FEZAHEL) +=A—H TR

Shenzhen Kangsheng Photoelectric  The PRC RMB16 million - 75 Research, manufacture
Technology Company Limited® 11 March 2011 AREI6EET and sale of photovoltaic
(“Shenzhen Kangsheng”) H products

RITRELER/ERARAR —2——F % - BEREERK
(IR Beas 1) == Em

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

1. RARKEEER(E)

EBRHBARZER(B)

incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and Registered equity attributable
Name place of operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
AL,
FEwHRAS ANTIELL
8 REXHH AR BEEDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HH# %

Sishui Yixin Renewal Resource The PRC RMB10 million - 60  Provision of solid
Company Limited 20 November 2017 ARBI0FET waste treatment and
(“Sishui Yixin") = utilisation of renewable

WkEH B ARERAT - TESUIEES
(I ) +—A—+f REEBENEER

B ERTELER

Sishui Singyes New Materials The PRC USD10 million - 100 Research, manufacture,
Company Limited® (“Sishui 10 June 2021 0FBET sale and installation of
Singyes New Materials”) = new materials

WA REI BB ERAT —E-—&xptR WR B BER
([moK S FM ) REAHTE

Shuifa Singyes (Shangdong) New The PRC RMB10 million - 51 Provision of solid
Materials Holdings Limited 1 December 2020 AREI0EET waste treatment and
(“Shuifa Singyes Shangdong”) = utilisation of renewable

KEEE(LF) MM EERFRAF —g-zz resources
(PRERRLR) P REEBENAER

B ERAEEER

Shuifa Singyes (Angiu) New Materials The PRC RMB5 million - 51  Research, manufacture,
Limited (“Shuifa Singyes Angiu”) 1 December 2020 ARMEFET sale and installation of

KERE(RDFHHERAT @ new materias
(IkBEERR ) —ToTF iz - 8k HER

+=A-A LRI
Notes: bR

(a) Zhuhai New Materials and Sishui Singyes New Materials were registered
as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law.

(b) Shenzhen Kangsheng was registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises under the PRC law.

(@)  TREFIMRRONK B FTH R IR R
BUAEEMAINTEE DX -

(b)  RIIERREHEAREMBTING
BAhx -

B R R R AR A T
B -GEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), Standing Interpretations Committee
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards
Committee that remain in effect and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

They have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
bills receivable and equity investments which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF %5 3R By 5T

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity shareholders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect of
which the group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF %5 3R By 5T

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

80

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued
by the IASB to these financial statements for the current accounting
period:

° Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16,
Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

. Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Other than the amendment to IFRS 16, the Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended IFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for
changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and
(i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate benchmark
is replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform
of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not
have an impact on these financial statements as the Group does not
have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are
subject to the IBOR reform.
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2.2

2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021 amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in IFRS 16 such
that as lessee it was not required to assess whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were
lease modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met. One of these
conditions requires the reduction in lease payments affect only
payments originally due on or before a specified time limit. The 2021
amendment extends this time limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June
2022.

The amendment has no impact on these financial statements as the
Group has no lease concession arising from by COVID-19.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations not under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests; and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its bills receivables and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred
tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 23 FTESHBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Asset acquisition EEWE
Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are assessed to FriiE — 8 E TR E B AT T AT
determine if they are business or asset acquisitions. On an acquisition- i NETEEEBESHEERE -
by-acquisition basis, the group chooses to apply a simplified RIZERKEEER S - EFTRERE
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is an ENAFEERIDSEFRE—A#7
asset rather than business acquisition, when substantially all of the BENR ARV EER - A&EH
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single RIZE AR EFE - DUREMKREERN —
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. When a group HEBREERS —BEEMIEFEBK
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed do not constitute a business, B o EATIE — A ERFTREAET
the overall acquisition cost is allocated to the individual identifiable TENET - BEBUER AT ERER
assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date UeiE A HARABRE A B D B2 E R AT 34
of acquisition. An exception is when the sum of the individual fair BEENREE - WA ZHEEKRAED
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities differs from the overall &R~ FERF R GBI AN -
acquisition cost. In such case, any identifiable assets and liabilities BIBHIAIMELR - ERIERT - AR
that are initially measured at an amount other than cost in accordance REERBER IR R AN AN 2 B AT
with the group’s policies are measured accordingly, and the residual EMAHEERBEIAERE -
acquisition cost is allocated to the remaining identifiable assets and FIERR) UL BB PR A& B UREE B BRI AR RS
liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition. REEDEEHR TN ENEERE
f& o
Related parties RES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FEUATERT » — R ARERR
BER -
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) BEIA—BALTHZALZH
and that person REYREKE * Mz AL :
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) ol ek FE I AL
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HAEEBERAFZE : =k
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAKBEXAEETAF
Group or of a parent of the Group; MNEZEBABMEF —
HKE
or 54
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

23 TESHHERBEGE)

BES (&)

(b)

%A RBERMAE THEM—IA

et -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REBHNERGE - WELQ
EIBAEES NS

ZHHAEE
BERAEE=-FEBNE
Mﬁ% s —REFLA
=g

BARNEEREREE
B ERBIER A
S HIBERAR A EH S

ZEBZ@EFRATEAL
Pk = A EFE S

(@) () B AT R A T 5%
ERBEATZENUEZ
ER(AZBERBNTLRA)
T2EEERE Rk

B AREIALZK
ARKERANEE
NREREEIZEEAER

\|]]]D
j‘ ku@

TR SRR AR A ]

—E-—FEERE

87



88

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 TESHHERBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value (nil
to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowing funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed
to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of
change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible
assets with finite lives as set out above.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 TESHHERBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Plant and office premises 2 to b years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group elected to present lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

23 TESHHERBEGE)

HE(E)

FEBEREBA (B)

(b)

HEERE

HEAENHEERR B EATEE
ANIELREEHIBIRERER
f?klﬁ’?%nzgﬁﬁm(ﬁii

FRIE ) R A 7] FE U FE & 22 B K
IE BURR T8RS I & 6y AT #4H
BB RIEBIRIE TR EESE
RTIZNHEHE - HEREBENE
BAEESEEETRAEER
BT E R B R
REEEITHERERIEALY
B AAREEES ISR -
PHURPRIEE AR A FHE
FRIBTE H IR B B R B SR
HE BRI AR RFAX

Rt EHERBENRER - AR
HERMENETZEE * A
SEEMRESHMNAHNEERE
RAEAE - RRMBER - 8
ERESEEM L‘AJiB%?F‘J,%i
MEFF S 2 HE R D
SN A EAERS - HEEE
MEFRBAEE (a2t X
B EEHRKREERR R LR
b)) B E AR E E R EET
HEE  AEFHFEEEAERN
ARME(E

REERENGS
BEIIHERE -

MR RE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets that are considered to
be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for as
finance leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 TESHHERBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit
or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months after the reporting
date(a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 TESHHERBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of the Group’s loans and borrowings is as
follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, the Group’s financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021

ETHMAE
WG ER Rt B

SREEN BRSO ERKRATE
ARG EMAE  ERREE B
IR - AR E B BE AP T
BT A(MEE) -

AR A ENRR AT ERR - 18
ERREE - RENFOR - RIHIRER
FEIEZ HRA

AEENEREERERMNERR - B
ENFELRHERE -

% ap

AEENERREREZREFENT

BEEH AR 2B E & (BHRE
)

RETHERE  AEENERABRER
A SR ANETE - RIFTIRF Y T &
R BRFABRNZL - ke @ Rl
FRANABR - BEL IR - SGRBE
BN R SR - Woas MRS IE N R a T
BSHR AR AR WB T B SR BB
BEIRFE AR SR B B ANFTE
W o BERF R EH AR Z BEK
K o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

23 TESHHERBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
products for general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty
period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and past experience of
the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
pUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.3 FESTBRBE(E)
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POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.3 FESTBRBE(E)
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) WA BR(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) KEFEF G Mz (4E)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(b)  Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to
the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to the estimated
total contract costs for the contracts.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. A contract liability would
also be recognised if the group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the group recognises the related
revenue. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless
there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
(a) Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees
are required to make monthly contributions calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to
certain ceilings and local practices set by the relevant local
governments, to the central pension scheme. Other than the
central pension scheme, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China have no legal obligation for retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. Contributions to these plans are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

(b) Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund
administered by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration
Centre in Mainland China are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognised as a liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Group’s presentation currency
is RMB because the Group’s principal operations are carried out in
Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in these financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profits or losses are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
RMB7,165,000 (2020: RMB6,448,000). Further details are given in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type and profile).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

EFEREHAEE(E)

fhEt ARERE(E)
BB

AEEEZLPEFFEEELTHER
B ZERREEHAESERENRS
ELBMEREE - ANEEENMEET
FEREEREIRSELEBMMTEHIARKR
BemErELhat - IMEEBEEAEL
BEUAGTEZEHRSRENIAE - R
T_—F+-_A=1+—8 BENEA
HERARET7,165000T (=T -FF :
AR6,448,0007T) - BRAMNE —F5F
B B 5 R I 7E L5 -

B SRS RRRE B X FRE

AEE AR B R EE YR
MIREMERBAR - BEXDEARAS
BB EEANZ ERF 2 8E 5 (A
REPRAELFREID ) HRKRERE

BREERNPENATEENELBRE
H o NEE R BIBRIEERE AR BE
SEERBRERIATEIEER - flan -
HIDARBEANR (MBI R EERE)RA
KRR - MEBELETENE
WS - FERBHEBSENFE
REREEY  BERBRENXKE

HESLEFROEX - MRAKEIRRIA
HERBARR ZHMARE ST —]
EEmfhET - BRERBRRNSEY
RERIRRRBERRER - NEBENE
SRERBRRR MBI TR IR
AREEARTIEPNAKNERENIS
o BEAASEE S RYGRIBNTARIE
RBREEMNMIEERMEL7KEE °

HEREF AR AR A S
S L i

113



114

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF %5 3R By 5T

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are subject to
PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT
have not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities, objective
estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for PRC CIT
to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and tax provision in the period in which the final outcome is
determined. The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at 31 December
2021 was RMB1,962,000 (2020: RMB1,913,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The
depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into account
changes in circumstances. The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment at 31 December 2021 was RMB70,314,000 (2020:
RMB73,074,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customers’ interests or competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The net carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021 was RMB6,902,000 (2020:
RMB3,762,000). Further details are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE

Operating segment information

The Group’s revenue and contribution to consolidated results are
mainly derived from its sale of ITO Film, Smart PDLC products,
LED Display and Projection System, which are regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
In addition, the principal assets employed by the Group are located in
Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other
than entity-wide disclosures.
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31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, REFTERRWA(E)
REVENUE (Continued)
Operating segment information (Continued) REHIWER(E)
Entity-wide disclosures: EE AR A
Geographical information HEER
Non-current assets FERE A E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T % ARETT %
Mainland China FR R R B 88,546 98.1 85,161 97.2
Hong Kong 6 1,690 1.9 2,434 2.8
90,236 100.0 87,595 100.0
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of FHIERBEEER EREEMNA
the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets. E BTREemMIAREERIEE
= o
Information about major customers BHETEEFHER
Revenue from major customers, which amounted to 10% or more of REERMRALREEIO% KA EMEER
the total revenue, is set out below: FHRWALT :
2021 2020
=F=—F =t ot 55
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Customer A ZHPA 24,885 -
An analysis of revenue is as follows: HIWABWSHAOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARET T

Revenue from contracts with customers KERFEA LRI A 131,279 100,529

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4., REPTERRWA(E)
REVENUE (Continued)
Operating segment information (Continued) rEFTER(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers KEFEFEHBIKA
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i) DEERAEH
Types of goods or services 72 on Sk AR TS HY AR A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Sales of ITO Film HEITOBER 47,843 43,130
Smart PDLC products BReFALER 41,524 48,900
LED Display and Projection system LEDFET R MR 25T 11,529 217
Sales of other products HEHMER 30,383 8,282
Total revenue from contracts with REFFE LR AR
customers 131,279 100,529
Geographical markets Hb [ T 45
Revenue from external customers REINIBEFEHUA
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Domestic — Mainland China* B Py — A B AR 123,538 95,096
Others Hi 7,741 5,433
Total revenue from contracts with REEF A LHNIRAREE
customers 131,279 100,529
* The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating subsidiary * AEET22BMBARMM
is Mainland China. The principal revenue of the Group is AR EIARE - REEME
generated in Mainland China. BRAEEBTEIARE -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(1)

4.
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CETHERRWAE)

nr

Operating segment information (Continued) BEHWBER(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) KEFEFEHHINA (4B)
Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i)  DERAEH(E)
Timing of revenue recognition WARERR 2 B ]
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—REBEEES 116,629 100,529
Services transferred over time A — R e N8 2 AR TS 14,650 -
Total revenue from contracts with REBEFE LMK ALLRRE
customers 131,279 100,529

(i)

The amount of revenue from the sale of goods recognised in the
current year that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year amounted to RMB840,000 (note 21).

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within one to six months
from delivery, except for small and new customers, where
payment is normally expected to be settled shortly after the
delivery of goods.

At 31 December 2021, the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) were expected to be
recognised within one year. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

(ii)
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B R B 75 3R 5 E RSB 1598 FT 2
o PEERERBHNEHOZR
SEWERE

B R R R AR A T
B -GEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Hing ARz
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: ER A RS DT T -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Written-off for trade payables TE 5 WA 2,962 -
Rental income LA 2,938 1,120
Deferred income released to profit or loss BEESRIEEN S

(note 23): (Ff3E23) :

— related to assets —HEERM 2,249 415

— related to expenses — R HAE 1,720 3,265
Recovery of employee reimbursement expense Y@ B EHF X 2,021 =
Government grants* AT Bh 776 517
Bank interest income HRITFEMA 141 173
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE REERE

equipment 34 1
Others HAth 76 167

12,917 5,658
* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these * 1R 45 75 R 7% 55 17 B 0 AR AR AR 1 Bl sk
grants. REF -
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

6. BRBIRIEIR

AEEBRBATEE R, (GEA) R

TRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF TE T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FitaE AR¥TT AREEFIT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 106,242 76,907
Employee benefit expense EEREFAX
(including directors’ and chief (BREZRTBAZHS)
executive’s remuneration) (note 7):  (Ffi&£7) :
Wages and salaries ITERES 15,353 13,656
Pension scheme contributions BB ET B 412 140
Equity-settled share option expense, — EzsftEEEEREM S -
net of reversal MER#EE 366 (497)
16,131 13,299
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #92% « = MEEITE
equipment 11 12,345 12,860
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14(a) 2,235 1,986
Research costs FFTA A 8,361 9,844
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 14(b) 533 388
Equity-settled share option expense  HEzs 45 HEE AR HERT - 211
Lease payments not included inthe Rt AEAEFEMNHE
measurement of lease liabilities FIE 14(c) 41 -
Auditor’s remuneration IZEREM BN & 1,340 1,400
Impairment loss/(reversal of S RNIEREEE
impairment loss) on trade CREEERRD) - F58
receivables, net 17 25,208 (2,979)
Gain on disposal of items of property, H&E®¥ - HEKREER
plant and equipment Wiz (34) 1)
Product warranty provision o RS 22 1,841 543
Foreign exchange gains, net PE 5 Was - JFER (1,510) (3,506)

B EEH A R R AR A F

R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERTHREAZME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BIEGEMBE S EMA A - HEQEME
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM, Bl 383(1)(a) * (b) * (¢) ROEKZ AT
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies (BEEEFTER) BHIE2EHERN
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information AEEEERFTETHABHFMHAT :

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Fees 971 1,225
Other emoluments: E<e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #% - JEBL R EWHIZR 324 278
Pension scheme contributions RRETEIHER - 1
324 279
1,295 1,504
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FARALZNTEIIFNTES 28
year were as follows: 0
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Ms. Li Ling EST X 124 133
Ms. Pan Jianli EEBX T 124 133
Mr. Pan Jianguo EERSA 100 107
348 373

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REAN EENBILIERNTES
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil). ZEMME(ZETF : &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 7. EERTHEARMS(E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) BITEERIHITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e oEE Bife

wE  REWNG STEIHR FaME
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AR%TR AR®TR  AR¥TR

2021 —E-—F
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Zhang Chao? KBS ED 199 - - 199
Mr. Du Peng!® FEHE ST AE® 199 251 - 450
Mr. Nie Yuanzhou® RN A ED 199 73 - 272
Mr. Sun Jinlit® R S 13 - - 13
Mr. Tang Liwen BN X HEW 13 - - 13
623 324 - 947
Non-executive director: FEHRITES :
Mr. Liu Hongwei® BIAT 4 S A - - - -
623 324 - 947

PEBEHANERERAT g
CEC-EEEHE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

7. EERITHARMNS(E)

(b) BITEERFHTESRCE)

(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions  remuneration
E = 1 Rk
we REWFIE STEIERR HolE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETIT AREFT ARBFT
2020 T CTF
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Sun Jinli X pva s 213 - - 213
Mr. Zhang Chao SRFEBSEAE 213 = = 213
Mr. Tang Liwen BN XS 213 278 1 492
639 278 1 918
Non-executive director: FEHTEE
Mr. Liu Hongwei AT AT - 213 = = 213
852 278 1 1,131
(i) Mr. Zhang Chao who acts as an the chief executive officer of the (i) RHBEER=_T=—%—A
Company on 25 January 2021. —+HABEEARRITERR
o
(i) Mr. Du Peng and Mr. Nie Yuanzhou who act as executive director (i) HBEEREEMEER=-F
of the Company on 25 January 2021. ——F—A=t+RAEEARR
AIBITES -
(i) Mr. Sun Jinli resigned as the executive director and the chief (i) FEEBEERZT=_—F—A
executive officer of the Company on 25 January 2021. Z+RAABEARRNTES
AT AEE, -
(iv)  Mr. Tang Liwen resigned as the executive director of the Company (iv) BUXGERZZT=—F—A
on 25 January 2021. Z+RBBERTES °
(v)  Mr. Liu Hongwei received remuneration from the Group’s holding () BlAa#ETEREAREARQR

124

company, in respect of his services to the larger group which
includes the Company and its subsidiaries. No apportionment
has been made as the qualifying services provided by the
director to the Company and its subsidiaries are incidental to his
responsibilities to the larger group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included 2 directors
(2020: one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2020:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company during the year are as follows:

BB R R M AL

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

8. HfuBSHESR

R AREEFRLQERIES
(=2=%FF : —f1) - ARIEFHHE
W EXHET < £R - BT =fr(=
ToTE A FARAEERIST
BB BE TR FIET :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % - 2B R EWHIZ 1,199 929

Equity-settled share option expense, net of PAREZSAEE v BEAER X @ H1k%
reversal o) - 59
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHR - 2
1,199 990

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:

THH BRI BRI TR &
BHERNKEMT

Number of employees

EEAE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Tt 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE

125



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX 9. FBH
The major components of income tax expense for the year are as RAFEMESHAIHEELHOT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Current — Mainland China E H— R B KR
Provision for the year FEEE 65 =
Under-provision in respect of prior years @B FEEE TR 182 -
Deferred (note 13) PEFE(MI5EL3) (3,140) (567)
Total tax credit for the year FEFIBER R B8 (2,893) (567)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

INCOME TAX (Continued) 9. FBH(E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the NEERBRTATESE - BEBASAH
applicable tax rates for the jurisdictions in which companies within the FrfE 2 A R B A B L5 E R
Group are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as HX% - RIREEERNEGTENTIE
follows: X - MAELERET :
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥TT AREEFIT
Loss before tax BRA% AT E R (20,870) (506)
Add: non-deductible expenses s RRBESEZ A H0R
incurred by the Company 53 (a) 2,254 1,984

(Loss)/profit before tax generated by ~H&EBEPENBARIELZ

Hong Kong and PRC subsidiaries BBiRT(E518), % F) (18,616) 1,478
Tax at the applicable tax rates REATEGTE 2B (2,639) 380
Tax losses utilised from previous year @BEEEEH 2 FHEER (65) =
Tax effect of additional tax deduction ~ FEFTEE B A5 FTE £ R ZBINE

for motor vehicles purchased TR 2 B i s 2 - 14
Tax effect of additional tax deduction  FFFEAXANE A4 2 B8 YN TE 4R

for research costs incurred L2 (1,176) (1,107)
Expenses not deductible for tax RIHUER A E R 32 28
Tax losses where deferred tax assets  IEJIER B E E R IEHER 2 FiE

not recognised &8 773 118
Under-provision in prior year BEFEREBTR 182 -

Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax EAEBE BRI RAE 2 Fi1A
rate Hx (2,893) (567)

FEREFHRERERAT |,y
BT EEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

9.

10.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in Bermuda. Losses incurred by the Company
during the year mainly consist of remuneration of directors. These
expenses are not expected to be tax deductible.

(b) During the year, Zhuhai New Materials was entitled to a preferential
PRC CIT rate of 15% as it is accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” (“HNTE”) from 28 November 2018 to 28 November 2021
and renewed on 20 December 2021 for a period of three years until
2024. Shenzhen Kangsheng was entitled to a preferential PRC CIT rate of
15% as it is accredited as HNTE from 9 December 2019 to 9 December
2022.

(c) The applicable CIT rate for the other PRC incorporated subsidiaries was
25% during the year.

(d) The applicable CIT rate for Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries was
16.5% during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as these Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries had tax losses
during this year.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year of RMB18,211,000 (2020: profit of RMB584,000), and the
number of ordinary shares of 520,000,000 (2020: number of ordinary
shares of 520,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per
share amounts in respect of a dilution as the exercise price of the
Company’s outstanding 7,790,000 share options was higher than the
average market price of the Company’s shares for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. 1% - MERRE

Plant and Motor Office  Construction
machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
B R R #es AE WORE HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®Tn AR¥Trn ARETR AR®TR
31 December 2021 —E-_—-F#+-A=1-H
At 1 January 2021 WZZE-—F—f—H:
Cost BAR 123,667 4,608 160 - 128,435
Accumulated depreciation e (53,204) (2,049) (108) - (55,361)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 70,463 2,559 52 - 73,074
At 1 January 2021, net of R-T-_—F—F—-H"
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE 70,463 2,559 52 - 73,074
Additions NE 2,987 - 178 1,702 4,867
Acquisition of subsidiary bhé-1=YNG] 5,596 176 37 - 5,809
Depreciation provided for the — AEEHEREE
year (11,568) (730) (47) - (12,345)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (59) - - (59)
Disposal HE (1,032) - - - (1,032
At 31 December 2021, netof ~ R=Z=——F+—A
accumulated depreciation =+—R - NKRZEHATE 66,446 1,946 220 1,702 70,314
At 31 December 2021: RZZTZ—F+=H
==
Cost (%N 132,250 4,784 375 1,702 139,111
Accumulated depreciation 25E (65,804) (2,838) (155) - (68,797)
Net carrying amount REFE 66,446 1,946 220 1,702 70,314

B EEH A R R AR A F
R -EFERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%5 R AR M R

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11. 9% - BERZRE(E)

(Continued)
Plant and Motor Office Construction
machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
B s AE WRRE TEETRE Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETR
31 December 2020 “ECRETZA=T-R
At 1 January 2020 RN_E_FF-A—R:
Cost XA 102,933 4,857 138 2,044 109,972
Accumulated depreciation e (41,279) (1,416) (94) - (42,789)
Net carrying amount REFE 61,654 3441 44 2,044 67,183
At 1 January 2020, net of RZZZZEF—-A—H"
accumulated depreciation M REHTE 61,654 3441 44 2,044 67,183
Additions NE 9,309 68 22 9,630 19,029
Depreciation provided forthe ~ AEEHEEE
year (12,101) (745) (14) = (12,860)
Transfer from construction in B TiZEA
progress 11,674 - - (11,674) -
Exchange realignment [ R A% - (201) - - (201)
Disposal & (73) ) - - 77
At 31 December 2020, netof ~ MZZ-ZTE+_H
accumulated depreciation =+—0  NKREHE 70,463 2,559 52 = 73,074
At 31 December 2020: RZZT=TF+=A
== s
Cost B 123,667 4,608 160 - 128435
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFHHTE (53,204) (2,049) (108) - (55,361)
Net carrying amount REHE 70,463 2,559 52 - 73,074
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y%  BMERZEE)
(Continued)
(@) Machinery and motor vehicles leased out under (a) BELEHERHOMER
operating leases RE
Machinery Motor vehicles Total
e RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT ARETTT

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H 10,958 3,896 14,854
Exchange realignment et - (235) (235)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF

+=A=+—-H 10,958 3,661 14,619
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—%—HF—H 10,958 3,661 14,619
Exchange realignment fE =B - (104) (104)
Additions NE 9,630 - 9,630
At 31 December 2021 R —4F

+=-A=+—-H 20,588 3,557 24,145
Accumulated depreciation ZiHIE
At 1 January 2020: RZZEZTF—HF—H 125 568 693
Depreciation provided for the year NG [E T E R 1,039 733 1,772
Exchange realignment fE = AR - (74) (74)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_ZTF+_A

=+—H 1,164 1,227 2,391
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—HF—H 1,164 1,227 2,391
Depreciation provided for the year ZN4F Z 47 & B 1,952 684 2,636
Exchange realignment b SR - (45) (45)
At 31 December 2021 R-_ZT—_—%+—A

—+—H 3,116 1,866 4,982
Net book value IREFE
31 December 2020 —E-FF+-AF=+—H 9,794 2,434 12,228
31 December 2021 —E-—4%+-AF=+—H 17,472 1,691 19,163

PEREFHRERERAT 4
BT EEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y% - BERZE(E)
(Continued)
(@) Machinery and motor vehicles leased out under (a) BELEHERHAMER
operating leases (Continued) RE(4)
The Group leases out a number of items of machinery and two AR EIRIRAS LS % (E
motor vehicles under operating leases. The leases typically run 2RIHE kMR E o EHE—
for an initial period of 1 to 2 years, with an option to renew the B BP—EZMF - WHRE
lease after that date at which all terms are renegotiated. None of - RFTBRRENEEE B
the leases includes variable lease payments. BEMAE - WSEHEMTEIEA
BHREMR -
12. EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR 12. EERAFEFTAHMER
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE W ERmRE
INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—-F TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FELMEREKE  RATE
Xi'an Xingye Metro Media Co., Limited AR EEMEEEGR A 5,000 5,000

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers the
investments to be strategic in nature. The directors are considering
to withdraw from this investment and expect to complete by 30 June
2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 R R M RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

13. DEFERRED TAX 13. IEZEBIIE
The movements of deferred tax assets during the year are as follows: BERBEEERFTRZEBMT
Depreciation
charge of  Impairment

right-of-use ontrade  Deductible
assets  receivables tax losses Others Total

ERAREE E5 kW AR
EXE NERE  HEER Hits @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRL ARETT ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R-E-_FTF—F—H - 2,090 - 1,105 3,195
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profit or Z£ENFMERE (%), FtAZ
loss during the year BRI (F9)
(note 9) 212 (462) 1,211 (394) 567
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF
+-A=+—-H 212 1,628 1,211 711 3,762
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-_—%—A—H 212 1,628 1,211 711 3,762
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profit or ERHMEZ(HK) /FH A2
loss during the year RIERIE (FI729)
(note 9) (117) 3,291 77 (111) 3,140
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—4F
+=-A=1+—H 95 4,919 1,288 600 6,902
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB778,000 (2020: rEEHBEBRBE EZ%%IEE?TQ/\
RMB769,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against RH¥778000m(ZE=FF : AR
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The 769,0007T) ] fEFR B AR SH = £ 18
Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB7,362,000 BRAZRRERT T o NEE TR
(2020: RMB9,695,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting 7=l N Y- EZE\EEIE)E‘E BAR
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses 17,362,000 ( Z T =ZFF : /\E’ﬁﬁ?
arose. 9,695,0007T) A] AR SHE £ BB AR
ZARERBRF - BR—ERF Wi‘J
He o

TR SRR AR A ] 133
R -EFERE



134

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

13. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China effective from 1 January
2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes
on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid by a Mainland
resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is 5% if the
Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland enterprise, if
applicable.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during the year, as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB82,441,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB79,045,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for plant and office premises used in
its operations. Leases of plant and office premises generally have lease

terms of 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

14. HE
AEEFEREBA
AEEGE L EB A2 BERBRE
MEFMTLAEAN - BERNLE
EIMMBER=F - —KM s - A%
B RAEASE LS T EER S RE
BEE -
(@) RAREE

REBFAEREEENREE

movements during the year are as follows: REENT

Plant and office
premises
BER
WAEYHE
RMB’000
AREETIT
As at 1 January 2020 R_E-_ZTF—H—H 8,058
Additions NE 1,279
Lease modification HEERT (1,032)
Depreciation charge ERS (1,986)

As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 WHR-Z_ZTF+_A=+—HNX
—E-_—%—HF—H 6,319
Additions NE 2,568
Lease modification HEEET 5,738
Depreciation charge WERX (2,235)
As at 31 December 2021 WZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 12,390

B R R R AR A T
B -GEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

14. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

14. HE(E)
AEBEREBEAE)

(b)

HEARE

FAHEEENEREREREZES N
T

2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HWERAEE 7,725 8,394
New leases HEE 2,568 1,279
Accretion of interest recognised during A2 ERF 2 1% 108
the year 533 388
Lease modification HEERT 5,738 (1,032)
Payments (DR (3,575) (1,304)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—HrEEE 12,989 7,725
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mEnE S 1,992 2,803
Non-current portion JEmBNEL D 10,997 4,922
(c) The amount recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases is as (c) REZPERNEERBEZIEN
follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREETIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENA 533 388
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEERERY
assets 2,235 1,986
Expense relating to short-term leases  ERSSEAREB BN FE X
(included in administrative expenses) (s A 1T ) 41 _
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 71825 FERR HYFIE 458 2,809 2,374

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(b) to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(d) The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its three machineries and two motor vehicles
under operating lease arrangements. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB2,938,000 (2020:
RMB1,120,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements. As of 31 December 2021, there was no
undiscounted lease payment receivable by the Group in future
period (2020: Nil).

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

14. HE(E)
AEBEERRBEA(E)
(d) ZKEBESHHAA

AEERBEEHELHEER
—ARERMEIE - FAX
SEEANEHSWABARYE
2,938,0007(ZE_FF : AR
#1,120,0007T) * BRAFIFER
MR NES - BE T~ —
F+-A=+t—8 FEERRK

7 B i I 4% FE MR BE ER A E S 3R
(ZZ=TF ) -
15. GOODWILL 15. B8
2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Cost and carrying amount AR K BRE A
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 MN-Z_-_ZF—HF—H -
and 1 January 2021 —EZF+A=+—BK
—E-—F—A—H 6,448 6,448
Additions NE 717 -
As at 31 December 2021 WR-_E-_—F+=-_HA=+—H 7,165 6,448

FRREFARERERET |45
CEC-EEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

15. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the group’s cash-generating units (CGU)

identified according to place of operation and operating segment as
follows:

15.

DECER RIS B N AR D BRI Y
AEBRSEEBMHPENAT

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU RN S EE B 6,448 6,448
Sishui Yixin CGU KGR &2 A B AL 717 -
7,165 6,448

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15.9%
for Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the industrial products unit beyond the five-year period is
3%.

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
12.11% for Sishui Yixin CGU. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the industrial products unit beyond the five-year period is
3%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGU for
31 December 2021. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted revenue is based on the historical
data and management’s expectation on the future market.
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15.

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU and Sishui
Yixin CGU respectively.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
of the cash-generating unit and the discount rate are consistent with
external information sources.

The directors had estimated the reasonably possible changes in those
factors and acknowledged that, even if the most unfavourable possible
values were assigned to those factors, the recoverable amount then
calculated, after incorporating any consequential effects of such
assignments on the other variables used to measure the recoverable

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

15. EE(E)
BB R R ()

REENE-RAREEN REREER
K2 BEMANEESEZEREFER
—FMERSZFHEMNE - WHBFK
KRFHARTRFT S # R L

PRTRL 3 — PR REIR E AT AT » A
[RABRERY IR IR S EEAE B u&mﬁn
MRTELBUARNEERR

HEFRSEEBMN 2 TSR RER
KT BRI T 2EE - BHNEE
AR —2

X% EREZAEA R

W HER A E % F R R E LRI AT 5
2% KEBRERAREFERSES
BfizralmeRERzEMEERH
BEZEMFER  ERMAEZAIR

amount of the CGU, would still exceed its carrying amount. Bl EEDHBAEREE
INVENTORIES 16. &

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETIT
Raw materials B 11,895 13,054
Work in progress R 4,558 4,204
Finished goods ER G 7,595 9,221
24,048 26,479

TR SRR AR A ]

B -GEEHE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. EZRFEREWREREE
2021 2020
—¥=—%F —FT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Trade receivables & S W GRIE 160,866 147,878
Less: Impairment B RE (36,161) (10,955)
124,705 136,923
Bills receivable e 14,282 8,223
138,987 145,146
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. AEEHEEFPHENE S BETAEERS
The credit periods generally range from one to six months for major BE AEE—RBEFEERFPNT—
customers. EREAMEER-
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements REE g E S R IEAE R A (T
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest- (IR @ E A EE AT - E5E
bearing. WHIBREE °
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of RREHR - IREERENE SRR
the reporting period net of loss allowance, is as follows: SIB R EWE BRI DT T ¢
2021 2020
—BE--F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREET T

Within 3 months —@AMA 40,229 32,057
3 to 6 months =Z=NEA 20,128 15,947
6 to 12 months NET=MEA 26,215 22,537
1 to 2 years —FERF 29,230 41,134
2 to 3 years MEE=F 13,141 29,048
3to 4 years = EF 10,021 4423
Over 4 years MM E 23 -

138,987 145,146
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

17. EZ RIFIER EWREE

(&)

B ZRYRENRERBEREEF N
I

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

At beginning of year REA] 10,955 13,936
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment REEE, CRERERE) - %

loss), net (note 6) (Pft7x6) 25,208 (2,979)
Exchange realignment bE A% (2) (2)
At end of year RER 36,161 10,955

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on historical credit loss experience for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type
and profile). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are full provided if past due for more than four years.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from bills receivable is
limited because the Group considers that there is no significant
increase in credit risk. All bills receivables with maturities within 12
months (2020: 12 months).

RE&RE B ARAREREETRED
i ARTEBEHERERX - BEXHE
REFRUEBERRANZEATFHEA
A (BREFER RS D) HBERE
RBREHRET © ZERRBIX 042
ER BEEREEELNERERHEG
MBBBEFER - BRI RAREE
FREBEANGERAIEER - —KM
= ' WEZEEREESEENF - A
FHEREURE

AEERERUREENEERBAR -
RABAEERSEERRY BEEEIE
e B REERER 1218 A REIE (=
T_TF:12(8A) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. EZRRFRERERE

(&)
Set out below is the information about default rates based on ageing of TREBBREREEIZRAEREFER
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: FIBZ RERH DB AR ER] -
As at 31 December 2021 N-—TB-_—+=-A=+—H
Ageing
BRE
Within 1-2 2-3 34 Over 4
1 year years years years years Total

—FR —EZEWMF WE=F =ZZENF BBWUF #mat

Expected credit loss rate  FBHA{Z I8k =& 3.29% 5.84% 44.86% 63.48% 99.40%

Gross carrying amount  BREIAA(E

(RMB’000) (AREFTT) 74,749 31,043 23,833 27,437 3,804 160,866
Expected credit losses TERRE 1B
(RMB’000) (AR®ETIT) 2,459 1,813 10,692 17,416 3,781 36,161
As at 31 December 2020 N-ZE-TFE+-_A=+—H
Ageing
AR
Within 1-2 2-3 Over
1 year years years 3 years Total
—FNR —EWME WE=F BE=F HET
Expected credit loss rate ~ TEHR(S FiEsk = 2.53% 4.18% 10.80% 47.65%

Gross carrying amount FREAE

(RMB’000) (AREETTT) 63,936 42,929 32,564 8,449 147,878
Expected credit losses SELEEIEEEEES
(RMB'000) (AR¥BFIT) 1,618 1,795 3,516 4,026 10,955
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. AMRIA - RERHMEW
RECEIVABLES ==

2021 2020

—F=—% —ZoTH

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Current portion: FIEIE8 53

Prepayments to suppliers TEfT IR 13,310 20,448

Deposits bizera 2,213 1,862

Due from related parties JEURAE T A 8,461 7,038

Other receivables H bl FRIE 54 380
24,038 29728

Non-current portion: FERIEIES 73 -

Prepayments for equipment* BN 367 1,754
Total #aEt 24,405 31,482
& Included in the prepayments for equipment is mainly a prepayment paid i REENHETEREABERITOEE

to an independent supplier to expand production of ITO film. RREEmMS N F— 2B HERN
TR ©
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. RERBEEEBYWURIKH
PLEDGED DEPOSITS XN

2021 2020

—EB-—fF —E T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETIT

Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTAE R 27,054 18,347
Less: Restricted cash B ZRHIEE (297) (10,034)

Pledged deposit for performance BRIEIR 2 IR

guarantee - (20)

Cash and cash equivalents BHe MREEEY 26,757 8,293

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the restricted cash represents
cash sealed by a court in the PRC as the Company’s subsidiary,
Zhuhai New Materials, has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit in
a product quality dispute arising in the ordinary course of business.

The Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in the
following currencies:

19. RERRSESEYURER

FR(E)

R_B_—FR_F_FF+_A
=t—H ERHIRS/RRFMBELD
A mPBEERRE RS - IR
RERLELETEBEREEUNK
SR

ARERS RBITEBRATHIEES
1A :

2021 2020
—E-—F TECTE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARET T

RMB equivalent amount: ANREZESE -

RMB ARK 25,400 16,749

HK$ BT 801 457

uss$ ET 832 1,122

EUR BT 21 19
27,054 18,347

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

20.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the purchase recognition date, is as follows:

19. RERRSSEYURER

FR(E)

RITR LT B RITERNE ZFEHT
KR - RITHEBREFANIHREATR
RS ~ [FBRIFHERITH

20. EZRARIE

R|REHR  ENEREERSFEER
ZENFRIBRREATAT

2021 2020

-5 —E T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREETTT

Within 6 months ~NEARA 32,241 14,632
6 to 12 months NET @A 3,037 1,031
1to 2 years —FERF 2,633 3,703
2 to 3 years MEE=F 2,131 2,180
Over 3 years =& e 42 1,363
40,084 22,909

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled

on three-month terms.

ZEESENRBARRE L BT R =

HERAEE o

B EEH A R R AR A F

R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. B EREERESE R
2021 2020

—¥=—%F —FT-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTT

Contract liabilities* EHEE" 2,576 1,756
Accrued expenses BRI 949 1,534
Payroll and welfare payable B TE REF 1,056 2,163
Tax and surcharge payables FEAST R TR K B N 2 11,597 22,431
Payables related to property, plant and Y% -~ BE RERER B2 EAFIE
equipment 2,342 715
Due to related parties (note 32(c)) JEAHREE T 2 A (MIE32(c)) 11,252 6,925
Other payables H v FRIE 5,021 1,562
34,793 37,086
* Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from * EHABRERRNERB TP IWER
customers in relation to delivery products. Changes in contract liabilities ZIEHRBERR - FR - GRBEZE
during the year are as follows: T :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,756 1,504

Revenue recognised that was included in the REXEFAA L E &2 iR

contract liabilities at the beginning of the (HisE4)

year (note 4) (840) (520)
Net increase due to cash received, excluding B UIR &1 INF5E - NEIEFERER

amounts recognised as revenue during the A2 &5

year 1,660 772

At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H 2,576 1,756
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22. PROVISION FOR PRODUCT WARRANTIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R R M AL

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

22. EmERERE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREETIT

At 1 January KR—A—H8 737 583
Additional provision RHINEAE 1,841 543
Amounts utilised during the year REANEBALHE (1,409) (389)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 1,169 737

The Group provides 6-month to 5-year warranties to its customers on
certain of its products, under which default products are repaired or
replaced. The amount of provision for warranties is estimated on sales
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns. The estimation

basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised as appropriate.

23. DEFERRED INCOME

AEEREETERAETFRRH6E
AESFHER - Bt ARBER T
HESURI - BRZBESHEENHE
AR MEERE SFORE 2 BRI -
At EER BB MIZER BT AE

i

23. IEFEYA

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BdaE AR¥TT ARETTT

At 1 January n—HA—H 4,235 6,369
Receipts of government grants WER B BB ER AT # B

related to:

Property, plant and equipment L E Y S (i) 1,963 1,046

Research and development i g (ii) 800 =

Released to profit or loss b=y 5 (3,969) (3,680)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,029 4,235

Government grants related to: BRARBUT D :

Property, plant and equipment WM - BE MR 3,029 3,315

Research and development i - 920

3,029 4,235

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

23. DEFERRED INCOME (Continued) 23, IEIEWA ()
Notes: BiteE
(i) The Group has received certain government grants in respect of the (i) AEEEESERBERENSE T

purchase of equipment and is released to profit or loss by annual
instalments to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant assets.

(ii) During 2021, the Group received government grant in relation to the (ii)
research and development project of Polymer-stabilized metallurgical
materials with electronically smart light-temperature controlled
undertaking by the Group under the “2020 Zhuhai Industry-University-
Research cooperation-funding programmes”. The grant is released to
profit or loss as other income over the periods when the research costs,
which the grant is intended to compensate, are expensed.

FEFEE) - WRFE o B R PATT
R EE 2 BRI EAED

RZT=—F « AEEFHERC2020
FHRBMESMAIEER ) TETER
HEEREERRENEEYEER
MR RIS T B T B R AT ARG ©
ZEMREE R ENTRERZ
FME AR AR ZIE2S -

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BB
Shares dni)
2021 2020
—E-—F TECTE
UsS$’'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0004% =% E{E0.01
US$0.01 each E T AR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
520,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01  520,000,0008% &% E{E0.013 7T
each 2 E AR 5,200 5,200
Equivalent to approximately RMB’000 ERHWARET T 35,415 35,415
There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during FA - ARFRETEABETME

the year. & o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the growth and development of
the Group (“Eligible Persons”). Eligible Persons of the Scheme include:

(i) (@) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full

time or part time) of; or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for, any
member of the Group or any substantial shareholder or
any company controlled by a substantial shareholder;

(i)  any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group; and

(iii) ~ for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes of participants.

The Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 17
October 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date
on which the Scheme is adopted unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from shareholders to refresh the 10% limit on the basis that
the maximum number of shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Scheme together with any share options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

25.

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

RS

ARBEAAN—IRERAERT S ([51E1]) -
BHERRAEE 2R LB RIEL AR
ZEEERMZAERAL(EERBA
T DIRMHRERERM - FHEZAERA
TEE:

ERMEEIBREER(T
MARTEFHIFNTE
= BRERBLIFNT
EF) EEFIBREEER
(T AEREGRE) %

()]

(b) EEEHBETIENEMA
BA AEBEFAKER
AREMEERRKHE
ERCREFINEM AR

(i) MASEEMAKE AR RS
7T AR AR S AF S A
B - 55 BELEMRBED
FHALTHERE &

(i) BFBIME - ERIE LA EA—
BR2EEN—BRZE AT
B EfRIRA] °

FAEER_TE—tF T AT LREARR
BIRERHLME - BRIFRITAHENER] - B
BIETEINERZ B RIS TR -

BITEARIRA B R AN R AME(T E A B A%
BB TR 2B BT AT AE 3
T2 BRI REAE K TFBBARABTNK
Tl A BB BT ANARREL0% » B
FEARRBEFBIRAAEEH10% R
B IR AIRIRET B AT R 2 R A
FARYRE Bl AR b R RAE = 81 R R
TR RBFTE 2 EABRES R 2K
e B LIRS NFBBARR TR
IR Z230% °

HEREF AR AR A S
S L i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF %5 3R By 5T

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the share options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible Persons (including
cancelled, exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue, unless (i) a circular is despatched to the shareholders;
(ii) the shareholders approve the grant of the share options in excess of
the 1% limit referred to in this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant Eligible
Persons and his associates shall abstain from voting. The number and
terms (including the exercise price) of share options to be granted to
such Eligible Persons must be fixed before shareholders’ approval.

Any grant of a share option to a director, chief executive of the
Company or substantial shareholder (or any of their respective
associates) must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee of the share options).

Where any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon the exercise of the share options already granted and to be
granted to such person under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including share options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant: (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at each date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further
grant of share options is required to be approved by shareholders in a
general meeting in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Any change in the terms of
a share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates is also
required to be approved by shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 25. B ERTEI(E)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors but BREZITEERESET - AR
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price RUATESE (VAR R R
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (i) EXHMEBRMWHEE  RG)A
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for NEIROREZZHNBHRTRERSAH
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer. R P2 T E o
The one-third of the share options vests 36 months after the date of =2 —BRERE L A A&36M[E A
grant and then exercisable on or after 31 January 2021; one-third of BB HEWN-—Z2-——F—A=+—H
the share options granted vests on the fourth anniversary of the date N2 EA] TITE - =92 —BIRERE
of grant and then exercisable on or after 31 January 2022; remaining HRBEENRAFSREE  HER_-F
one-third of the share options vests on the fifth anniversary of the T oF—A=F—HZER FIIE
date of grant, and then exercisable on or after 31 January 2023. BT=p2—EBRENFELBHESE
Outstanding and unexercised share options of each vesting period may hiBAFHE HeERWN_-_Z-_=%—A8
be rolled over to the next vesting period(s) and exercisable during the =+ —HZEAI T - RSB
relevant validity share option period. MR TE REFTENERETEE
T—5EH - RRNEEAE S ERER
AR FATHE o
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during REZFTEIE T MARITE 2 BRER
the year: N
2021 2020
—E-—F “T-THE
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
1EE BREHE 11158 RiELE
HK$ per HK$ per
share '000 share ‘000
BRET T BRABT Fn
At 1 January R—A—H 1.16 8,590 1.16 15,700
Forfeited during the year FREIL 1.16 (800) 1.16 (6,410)
Surrendered during the year FAE - 1.16 (700)
At 31 December N+-—A=+—H 1.16 7,790 1.16 8,590

B R R R AR A T
—E-—FEERE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

25.

BRESEE)

S EIR M AR TR AR A 2 TR B AT
EHAGN T -

2021 2020 Exercise price  Exercise period
—E-—-F —TCTF TEE  TES
'000 '000 HK$ per share
T T BRET
2,597 2,863 1.16 31 January 2021 to 30 January 2028
B F—-A=t—HEZZ-N\F—A=TH
2,596 2,863 1.16 31 January 2022 to 30 January 2028
B CF-A=t—BREZ-/\F—H=+H
2,597 2,864 1.16 31 January 2023 to 30 January 2028
B =F—A=t—HE=_T-_/\F—A=TH
7,790 8,590

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 800,000 options
(2020: 6,410,000) were forfeited due to the resignation of grantees
and no options (2020: 700,000) were surrendered by a grantee.

During the year, the Group recognised share option expenses of
RMB1,620,000 and reversed share option expense of RMB1,254,000
due to the forfeiture of share options, resulting in the net charged of
share option expenses of RMB366,000 during the year (2020: Net
reversal of share option expenses to profit or loss of RMB286,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 7,790,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 7,790,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of US$77,900
(equivalent to approximately HK$607,000, before issue expenses).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

26.

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 7,790,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.498% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Statutory reserves fund

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a
portion of profits as determined in accordance of the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles of the PRC of subsidiaries
established in the PRC has been transferred to reserves
funds. Such reserve funds are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to accumulated loss
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves consist of (i) the deemed contribution from
the Company’s intermediate holding company, Shuifa Singyes
with respect to share options granted by Shuifa Singyes; and (ii)
the advance received from Top Access in 2015 amounting to
RMB55,161,000, which was waived by Top Access during the
same year.

25.

26.

Bt 5 ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

BRESEE)

WNZERBHRIER R - NRFIRE
=T EI%EH7,790,00017 8 AR 1T < BEAX
¥ - AR RAINZ A 2 B EITRD 2K
1.498% -

(G

REBXRFEMEEFEZRHEZER
HEZBHHN RS EBRA -

() ZEEEFES

RIBF B ERERER - IRIB
FEARETRAUNEENTEIK
S —ERE AR R
HEERER - ZERBETH
7k (BRIFEABR) W RBNH
BIERDER AEAE TR ©
S ARREE R RS
BENMERBRRA -

(b) BRERAE

BREREEREREBERFTE
BB NHE - P BEREK
MIFE2.3MIARR D AERN K Z
CBRNE—FHE - EHH
PEREEITER - R BASER
ERMEERR - SAEBEE
i B HOR U B Rl B 8 = R AR

8o
(c) BXRf#E

B AREB RN AR E /Y REE
BE A RIKEE FLSE ph K B EL AT T
BRENRELE  (WRZF
— R Top Accessd 5EA A R
55,161,000 CHI 45X + 2B HE
R E ¥ Top AccessE Bk °

HEREF AR AR A S
S L i
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27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 February 2021, the Group acquired 60% of the equity interests in
Sishui Yixin Renewal Resource Company Limited (“Sishui Yixin”) from
an unrelated party (“Selling Shareholder”).

Sishui Yixin is primarily engaged in the provision of solid waste
treatment and utilisation of renewable resources in Mainland China.
Through the acquisition of Sishui Yixin, the Group obtained access
to a readily available business in the renewable resources industry
which enables the Group to broaden its income stream and enhance
shareholders’ value. The goodwill reflects synergies expected from
leveraging the Group’s existing resources and network to improve
overall profitability.

In accordance with the agreement between the Group and the Selling
Shareholder, certain payables by Sishui Yixin to some suppliers
would be waived contingent upon the financial performance of Sishui
Yixin during 2021-2023 meeting specified targets. The Group has
accounted for those variable payments that would be paid indirectly
via Sishui Yixin as contingent consideration in exchange for the control
over Sishui Yixin. At the acquisition date and 31 December 2021,
the Group has included RMB1,920,000 as contingent consideration
related to the variable payments, which represents the fair value of the
contingent consideration.

The revenue and loss after taxation of RMB1,784,000 and
RMB867,000 respectively in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income were contributed by Sishui Yixin from
the date of the acquisition to 31 December 2021. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2021, management estimates that consolidated
revenue would have been RMB131,352,000, and consolidated loss
after taxation for the year would have been RMB18,016,000.
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27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 27. WEEMIB AR (48)
The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets TR A UEE B B U EE R B E R
acquired and liabilities assumed at acquisition date, excluding the MNEENEERSRE  TeELME
payables mentioned above that have been accounted for as contingent ANERFIVESAB R FRIE -

consideration.

8 February 2021

B

—ANH

RMB’000

AREETIT

Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 5,809
Prepayments in advance TR IR 1
Inventories FE 564
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGRIE R EWER R 19
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FBfZIA - #&& & E b EUFKIE 301
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRSEEY 87
Trade payables B SN FRIE (4,071)
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ETE A (703)
Fair value of net assets acquired FrE EEFEN L TE 2,007

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows: REWEEBENEEERNT

8 February 2021
—E_—F
—HANH
RMB’000
ARETT

Total consideration — contingent consideration

RAE—-IARE 1,921

The Group’s share of the fair value of net assets ZREB S5 ATIKEEEEFENAFE

acquired

(1,204)

717

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Non-controlling interests of Sishui Yixin are measured at their
proportionate interest in the recognised amounts of the assets and
liabilities of Sishui Yixin.

In July 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire 51% equity interest in Shuifa Singyes Angiu from a fellow
subsidiary, Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co. Ltd.
(“Zhuhai Singyes”) at a consideration of RMB2,400,000.

The transaction was completed in September 2021 and recognised
as an acquisition of assets due to the absence of business activity.
The fair value of the gross assets is concentrated in a group of similar
identifiable assets (cash and cash equivalent). Further details of the
net assets acquired are set out in note 30(c).

In July 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 51% equity interest in Shuifa Singyes Shangdong from a fellow
subsidiary, Zhuhai Singyes at nil consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

29.

INTEREST

In June 2021, the Group acquired an additional 25% of interest in
Yan’an New Materials at nil consideration, increasing its ownership
from 75% to 100%. The carrying amount of Yan'an New Materials’s
net assets in the Group’s consolidated financial statements on the date
of the acquisition was RMB627,000.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

BB R R M AL

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

28. WEB IR R

29.

RZZF_—FRH  AEENZRER
R R RSN 26 % i - S E R
RER75%EZE100% - KRB BEH - K
SEGAPMBEHRRANTELHMHEE
FERRE{ESARE627,0007T °

IR

RIEHR - NEEB THEAAIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: EEFOIEES 3.
Capital contribution for equity investment BHRENE

4,500 4,500

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. KERERMERMET
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) ERMETHELENEELEH
2021 —E-—F

Amounts due

Dividend to related Lease

payable parties liabilities
EREES

EARE MIE HEAE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T AR¥TT

At 1 January 2021 R—ZE—_—F—H—H 361 6,925 7,725
Changes from financing cash ~ BYEIR & MEELER
flows v - 1,535 (3,575)
Lease assets to related parties $ffAH T HEEEE - - -
New leases Mg - - 2,568
Lease modification HEIBET - - 5,738
Interest expense charged to FFABEAF B H
profit or loss - - 533
At 31 December 2021 R-E——%
+=-—A=+—H 361 8,460 12,989
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(@)
(Continued)

2020

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

BB R R M AL

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

30. KERESREXRMET(E)
(a) FREETHELENEEEH
(%)
—ECTE

Amounts due

Dividend to related Lease
payable parties liabilities
JERTRRET

FERTRIR S FIE HEafE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARET T AREETIT

At 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—A—H 685 748 8,394
Changes from financing cash ~ BIERESREEEN

flows e (5,082) 7,369 (1,304)

Lease assets to related parties @Bt TN E L E - (1,192) =

New leases e - = 1,279

Lease modification MHEEE] - - (1,032)
Interest expense charged to FTABEMF S H

profit or loss - - 388
Final 2019 dividend declared K3 —Z— N F R

i) 4,758 - -
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZF+_A

=+—H 361 6,925 7,725

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEENBRERE

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

SAARSRERNBELRDR

cash flows is as follows: HanF -
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Within financing activities mEEHN 3,575 1,304

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30.
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries

The recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities at the
date of acquisition of the subsidiaries comprise the following:

GERETRERME(R)
(€ WBHEARELNBERS
A

N IEPNGIIS il G e
EFBREHEISEBE TS

18 :
Sishui Yixin K 25 57

2021

—E-—F

RMB’000

AR®T T

Property, plant and equipment L E =N 5,809
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEURIE « 188 RN RIA 302
Inventories 7E 564
Trade and bills receivables B 5 ek IE K R ZE 19
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEED 87
Trade payables B S ENFRIA (4,071)
Other payables and accrued charges H i oE N et E A (3,906)
Non-controlling interest JEPE IR RS 479
Goodwill s 717
Total consideration paid in cash UL T HERE -
Less: cash of subsidiary acquired S FTURBEIN B AR & (87)
(87)
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition of

BB R R M AL

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

30. KERESREXRMET(E)

(c) WENEBARELENFERS

subsidiaries (Continued) RAE)

Shuifa Singyes Angiu KBEELT T
2021
—E-—fF
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash By 2,553
Tax payable JERTFRIR (1)
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR A 1
2,553
Total consideration paid in cash LRSS MarRE 2,400
Less: cash of subsidiary acquired o TR BEMTB ATIRS (2,553)
(153)

31. DIVIDEND 31. RE

At a meeting of the directors held on 21 March 2022, the directors did
not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021

(2020 final dividend: Nil).

\—E-_—F=A=-+—HBT2ESE

FL ESTESIBEE_ZT=—F

:HE+ HIEFERMN AR S
TERHIRE : £8) -

|“+mﬁ>%

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 32. BERRZ KRR

BALANCES

Details of the Company’s principal related parties are as follows: AAREEBEFFBLT

Company name Relationship NGRS &

Top Access Parent company Top Access [SH/NC]

Shuifa Singyes Intermediate holding IKEE 2 AR

company NG|

Zhuhai Singyes Fellow subsidiary B NiSEEES EEX)E

UNC]

Singyes Energy-saving Technologies Co., Fellow subsidiary WEEEMERFEERAT RRWE
Ltd. (“Singyes Energy-saving”) ([HEZEERRE ) NG|

Hunan Singyes Solar Technology Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary M EERGRERAR  RARWE
(“Hunan Singyes Solar”) ~R([Br e ) N

Shuifa Singyes Energy (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary REEERER(FG)BRE RRWEB
(formerly known as “Zhuhai Singyes A (RIS PR e ZE R e IR AR]
Renewable Energy Co., Ltd”) (“Shuifa BEARAR ) ([ K3 HE
Singyes Energy”) ES W)

Singyes Engineering (H.K.) Co., Ltd Fellow subsidiary EBEMETRAR AT EES
(“Singyes Engineering (H.K.)”) (TBBEETIR]) NG|

Singyes Green Investment (HK) Co., Ltd Fellow subsidiary HESERE(H/E)AR RRWEB
(“Singyes Green Investment”) ARI([EEHZBRE]) NG|

Hunan Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd Fellow subsidiary R ELE AL B REIRIR D EEXG)E
(“Hunan Singyes Green Energy”) BRAR([HmERELSE NG|

AN
Hb/ﬁj)

Shuifa Singyes Holdings (Zhuhai Henggin) Fellow subsidiary KEEERR (RIEE)E RRWEB
Co., Ltd (“Shuifa Singyes Holdings PR A A ([ 7K 2% B AR (R AF]
(Zhuhai Henggin)”) BEE) )

Sishui Hengrui Decoration Engineering Non-controlling interest MK EIRE TIRBR AR FEFERR
Co., Ltd (“Sishui Hengrui Decoration (MK iErmEEs T2 |) REm

Engineering”)

162 China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 32. BEARZIRES(E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(@) During the year, the Group had the following material @) AFE - AEEHEEBEHETI
transactions with its related parties: TEARS :
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfsE AR¥TT ARETIT
Rental income: HAEWA :
Singyes Energy-saving FZEENRE (i) 1,440 720
Shuifa Singyes Energy IKEEBFZEREIR (i) 630 =
Shuifa Singyes IKEEELIZE (i) 747 400
Meal expenses: BERY
Singyes Energy-saving FZEERRY (ii) 728 333
Service fee: RI&E :
Singyes Energy-saving B ETRE (iii) 1,516 -
Utility: KE :
Singyes Energy-saving FLZERTAE (iv) 3,083 -
Sales of goods: HEER :
Shuifa Singyes Energy Vi3 (v) 104 —
Hunan Singyes Green Energy AR B AR B RE R (v) - 155
Zhuhai Singyes TR E (v) - 47
Singyes Green Investment FRGEIRE (v) - 2
104 204

B BT R IR B R A F 163
R -EFERE
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31 December 2021
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

During the year, the rental income derived from Singyes Energy-
saving, Shuifa Singyes and Shuifa Singyes Energy amounted to
RMB1,440,000, RMB747,000 and RMB630,000, respectively, as
the related parties rent machineries and motor vehicles from the
Group. The rents were negotiated by both parties by reference to
the market pricie.

Singyes Energy-saving provides meal services to the employees
of the Group at the rate of RMB3 per breakfast per person and
RMB11 per lunch/dinner per person as determined under the
service agreements. The directors consider that the rates in
respect of the provision of meal services by Singyes Energy-saving
were determined on normal commercial terms.

Singyes Energy-saving provides administrative service to the
Group and was charged on normal commercial terms.

Singyes Energy-saving provides electricity and water to the Group
and was charged on normal commercial terms.

The sales of goods to related parties were made according to the
price negotiated by both parties by reference to the market price.

During the year, rental related to the Group renting a plant from
Singyes Energy-saving amounted to RMB1,139,000 (2020:
RMB984,000). Upon the adoption of IFRS 16, the above lease
contract was recognised and measured as right-of-use asset.
The directors consider that the plant and office rental expenses
paid by the Group to Singyes Energy-saving as determined under
the tenancy agreement were based on market rates for similar
locations.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

32. BER RS REHRE)

(b) EREELHNHEMXS

(b) Other transactions with related parties

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Interest-free advances from: RETHNEHFRERMLRK
Singyes Energy-saving FLZEERE - 1,882
Shuifa Singyes Energy IR REIR 24,000 -
Zhuhai Singyes b7 ¥isHi e 2,400 =
Shuifa Singyes IKEE BLZE 204 5,756
Singyes Green Investment WEFERE - 39
26,604 7,677
Repayment of interest-free REFIEHEERETAGRK
advances from:
Singyes Engineering (H.K.) EBEETIE - 308
Interest-free advances to: REBRTF :
Zhuhai Singyes REEZ 1,375 6,367
Shuifa Singyes Holdings KB B
(Zhuhai Hengqin) GRBEE) 48 =
1,423 6,367
Repayment of interest-free BATEHFEBEREBN
advances to:
Shuifa Singyes Energy IR RER 24,000 -
Zhuhai Singyes HRgEE - 4
Shuifa Singyes IKEE BLEE - 45
24,000 49

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

32. BER RS REHRE)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) BAERREELEL
2021 2020
—E--F TETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETIT
Due from the related parties: FEURESE H 3118 :
Non-trade in nature HEFMHE
Shuifa Singyes Holdings IREE B
(Zhuhai Hengqin) (KEE=E) 48 =
Zhuhai Singyes RGBS 7,890 6,515
7,938 6,515
Trade in nature EBESME
Zhuhai Singyes TRGEEE 248 248
Shuifa Singyes Energy IR IR 100 100
Hunan Singyes Green Energy R AR B AR 175 175
523 528
Due to related parties: FEARELRE
Non-trade in nature HEGHE
Hunan Singyes Solar Ve E YN 440 440
Shuifa Singyes IKEE B 4,846 5,378
Zhuhai Singyes b VST ES 2,400 -
Sishui Hengrui Decoration Engineering U7k 183524 8 T 12 1,166 -
Singyes Green Investment FEGERE 39 39
Singyes Energy-saving B FRE 2,361 1,068
11,252 6,925

Balances with the related parties are interest-free, unsecured

and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 2. BEARGRESR(E)
BALANCES (Continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) FAEEXTEEEAESNEM
Group
2021 2020
—E=-—F T oTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R REYAE

kind 1,543 1,158
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET BN - 4
Equity-settled share option expense, AR AEE 2 IR -
net of reversal R EE 194 (185)
1,737 977
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments EHAESRITBAHMN SRS —
are included in note 7 to the financial statements. FHIBERR I ISREMET -
33. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 33. s REEEE
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in AEZARUIBERNCEHESAE
their entirety B
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Gross amount of assets continued to be BTN EE 24858
recognised:
Endorsed Bills HEZIE 9,164 843

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

33. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a total carrying amount of RMB9,164,000 (2020: RMB843,000) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers. The Endorsed Bills had a maturity of one to seven months
at 31 December 2021. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to the Endorsed Bills, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the
associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other
third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers
have recourse was RMB9,164,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain reputable banks in Mainland China to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers,
with carrying amounts in aggregate of RMB3,620,000 (referred to as
the “Derecognised Bills”, 2020: RMB14,836,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity from one to nine months at 31 December 2021.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills. The
maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills is not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss on
the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills (2020: Nil). No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during
the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERTEzEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments REREHR - SRR TANKEE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: LIRE
2021 -
Financial assets EREE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other Financial
through profit  comprehensive assets at
or loss income  amortised cost Total

ERR#E EBEMZE
APERN WERATE UBHRAR
EREE JIRZEREE NEREE @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBT ARBT

Equity investments (note 12) Bni A (f:12) - 5,000 - 5,000
Trade and bills receivables B S RYGUR kRN ER - 14,282 124,705 138,987
Financial assets included in BNFE - ReREM
prepayments, deposits and other ~ JEWFAER B EH)
receivables SREE - - 10,728 10,728
Pledged deposits EHER - - 297 297
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED - - 26,757 26,757
- 19,282 162,487 181,769
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
DU S R AN B BR
HEmas
RMB’000
AR¥TRT
Trade payables Z S ENRIE 40,084
Financial liabilities included in other payables and ~ EAbEMFBKLEAERFREH
accruals TRIEE 19,564
Lease liabilities HEaE 12,989
72,637

PEBEHANERERAT g
CEC-EEEHE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
2020

Financial assets

34. &EH!

PEZEMIA(E

—g-%F

THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other Financial
through profit ~ comprehensive assets at
or loss income  amortised cost Total
FERERE  ERAEMZE
NEEFIRN WRERATE NEERANER
SREE JEzZomEE HEREE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Equity investments (note 12) B E (HE12) = 5,000 = 5,000
Trade and bills receivables BoRUFIERERRE - 8,223 136,923 145,146
Financial assets included in A - e Rk Ef
prepayments, deposits and other  FEWFIER A SH)
receivables SREE = = 9,280 9,280
Pledged deposits ERER = = 10,020 10,020
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRESEY - - 8,327 8,327
- 13,223 164,550 177,773
Financial liabilities THERE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RSP AN
HIIBRHY
EEAE
RMB’000
AREETTT
Trade payables B SR FRIE 22,909
Financial liabilities included in other payables and ~ EfbEMNFIEN EFERTEEH
accruals ERMEE 10,736
Lease liabilities HERE 7,725
41,370

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

35. gEﬂIEE’\J’A$E&'D\$E

FK

AEESBIAY EEERATECE
EEAEETATENSRHT AR
T

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREIE AVE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—-F ZZ-THF B CZIZTF
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB’000  RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR¥ETT AR¥TR ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments designated 38T AFE AH M
at fair value, through other EHEWE 2 EESRE
comprehensive income 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

Management estimated that the fair values of unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income approximates to the original cost paid to subscribe such
investments.

EEECHEREIREEEY - BT
TR BEHRUEFEBENEERER  B5
N3 - BNRETFEENEREE
TR A1 EL A R AUR A B B At 8 5 SR AL FE
FEETEENERAENATFERERE
FREEBEXIZEMNZETANENE
H o

EREERBENATEREARES
ZRAEEMR ST BT ENEER
HESRFISBE L ERID

UTERBR AR ATE -

EREME  BEAATHEAARME
EU R IE SR AN A ERR
R ARBZILE R AFRE

B R R R AR A T
—E-—FEERE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. EMITANAFERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) E;x(E)

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAAREEERITANTEFERE
the Group’s financial instruments: AV

Assets measured at fair value B FEGBEZEE

Fair value measurement using

AVEHRER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERME EBEATEHE EATTEER

ZEE WABE BARE
(5—F8) (=) (%=58) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥TR ARBTR ARET:R

As at 31 December 2021 RZZT=—F+=A8
=+—~H
Bills receivable e E & - - 14,282 14,282
Equity investments designated TR AT ERT AEA
at fair value through other EHEWE 2 EERE
comprehensive income - - 5,000 5,000

- - 19,282 19,282

172 China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. eI ANAFERAFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) E4(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEER(E)
Assets measured at fair value (Continued) BAFEFEZEEE)

Fair value measurement using

AF{ER R
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RS BAUEER BATAER

ZHfE BABE BABE
(B—E) (=) (B=E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARETT ARBTE ARETT

As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTF+=A
==
Bills receivable FEUN E 5 - - 8,223 8,223
Equity investments designated 38T AFE AH M
at fair value through other PEWE 2 ESIRE
comprehensive income - - 5,000 5,000
- - 13,223 13,223
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as R-EBE-—F+-_A=1+—H ~EH
at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). BEERNAATEAENEREBE(Z
TTFE) o
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RER eREENEBEGEES
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for HEE AN FEALEFENE
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil). % TEERE=ENER(ZZT=F
F4E) o

FERREFARERERET 54
CEC-EEEHE
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, trade and other payables and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have any significant exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates as the Group does not have any
significant long-term receivables and loans which are subject to floating
interest rate.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in the Mainland China
and most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the
Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for
those of the overseas subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Company
whose functional currency is HK$. Foreign currency exposure mainly
arises from intra-company balance denominated in HK$ as recorded
by Zhuhai New Materials. At 31 December 2021, Zhuhai New
Materials recorded an amount due to the Company of RMB33,500,000
(2020: RMB54,886,000) denominated in HK$. If RMB strengthens/
weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible change of 5%, the
profit before tax of the Group will increase/decrease by approximately
RMB1,675,000 (2020: RMB2,744,000), correspondingly.

China Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has established a credit risk management policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates. In
addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Any credit sales exceeding the initial approved limits require approval
from the board of directors. Debtors with balances that are more than
2 years past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group considered that there is no significant increase in the credit
risk arising from bills receivables after taking into account payment
history and forward-looking information. Therefore, the expected credit
loss allowance of bills receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
in not material.

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

36. SIHAMER A WREK

=

FERR

AEECHEEERREERRE &
It EHMEEEEENTPETER
EEME - WETHAETRELPBEX
TR R REER MRS S SRV BE ] -
I BEPRENERIARBERE P&
BRTELBERIZNER - I - BHE
WRIBAEER TR B B 5T - (TR H ¥15R
EHRENEEHEREZRFESSN
HofE o BERABRBMENEBAZR
EERE— S EERNEEME RIS
—RiME - ARELEGFPESER
@ o

AEERE @ EERBEMNREE A
EHEER - RERREENEERRI
EAREIEI - AL - R —F k=
ToTE+ - A=+—H  EREEY
FBEEAIBABET TEAX -

TREFIN T ZA=T—BIRBAEE
MEEBRRENNEELRRESEE
Bk - HEBERBHER (BRIEME
HpERBATVENKALE ) E
TEARIRF R AR BOETT 2 048 » P
2R SEREE L REAE

R-ZE-_—F+=-H=+—H

12-month Lifetime

ECLs ECLs
+=EA
BHER 2HITEH

B ERB%

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

E—RR B EZHRR b 7% ®ast

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TR ARWTRT ARETR

Trade receivables* B S edRE - - - 160,866 160,866
Financial assets included ~ BERBRNFIE - &
in prepayments, deposits & E A EWFIE 2

and other receivables TREE
— Normal** — 10,728 - - - 10,728
Pledged deposits [mEZwTES N
— Not yet past due — R E R 297 - - _ 297
Cash and cash equivalents 3% MR E&EEY
— Not yet past due — AR AR 26,757 - - - 26,757
37,782 - - 160,866 198,648

FRREFARERERET 55
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

36. SIHAMER A REK

=

FERER(E)

RZZE=ZTF+=-A=+—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
+={EA
TBEEA 2 HTE A
=P ERBEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—PEER EPEER FE=[EER ka7 4Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETTE AREBTT ARBTT
Trade receivables* B N GRIE* - - - 147,878 147,878
Financial assets included ~ B¥ERTBRFUE « &
in prepayments, deposits R E A FEIFIEZ
and other receivables CREE
— Normal** —E i@ 9,280 = = = 9,280
Pledged deposits [mEwieEN
— Not yet past due — [ AR 78 Hf 10,020 - - = 10,020
Cash and cash equivalents 3£ & MIRE&EEY
— Not yet past due — 1R AR 78 Hf 8,327 = - = 8,327
27,627 - - 147,878 175,505

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach

for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

* ok

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial

assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group had certain concentrations of credit risks arising from the

total trade receivables due from the Group’s largest customer and the
Group’s five largest customers as follows:

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

36. MBABERE WRKR

FERR(E)
AEERETEERRERZEAR - B

RUAEBZRAEF RASKERAARF
BHORERENT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

% %

Due from the Group’s largest customer ERAEEZARF 7.9 5.7/
Due from the Group’s five largest customers EWASERARF 15.2 17.5

Most of these customers have long-term business relationship has
been established between the Group and these customers. The Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
monitoring procedures to ensure that there will be follow-up action to
recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s management reviews the liquidity position of the Group
on an ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and
outflows in order to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the settlements from customers and the payments to vendors.

REBZEREPHEASEMEERP
BYREINEBRE - AREERIR—
xEGRREEEERBREEREF -
VAREGRAS BREVIR AR TT B I BB AR IR ©

RBES R

AEENEEEREERAKENRE
B - BREHEMNRERALR
H - NERABTHE SRS - ARM
HERPpELFE -

REBEORBDES EEZAORNEESHF
BEREEBE P NRENRTHER
ME BRI 2 ARG FEMEES
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31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. A REEENRBER
Z%

AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBEERM(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of REIEHR - EREFTAEREERAN
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, A AEEz A ERBERNAT
is as follows:
2021
—E-—-F
Within 1 to less than Carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years Total amount
-7
RERE —ER "ER #at BRMEE

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%TxR

Trade payables BN FE 12,855 27,229 - 40,084 40,084
Other payables and accruals E & 7B & fERHE 8,312 - - 8,312 8,312
Lease liabilities MEaE - 2,452 12,850 15,302 12,989
Due to related parties FEfTERE 508 11,252 - - 11,252 11,252
32,419 29,681 12,850 74,950 72,637
2020

—TTE
Within 1 to less than Carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years Total amount

—FF
R E KA —ER hFER st RHEE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R

Trade payables B S E 14,726 8,183 = 22,909 22,909
Other payables and accruals — E & {08 & fE 5+ & F 3,811 = = 3,811 3811
Lease liabilities HEARE = 3,148 5,277 8,425 7,725
Due to related parties FET B H #UA 6,925 = = 6,925 6,925

25,462 11,331 5,277 42,070 41,370
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 3R B 5

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iEERERE B N RBER
=]

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing services and products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade
payables, lease liabilities, other payables and accruals, and tax
payable, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank balance.
Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the Company.

=

N

EXER

AEENEAREE B IEERENEER
BIEMRE ] - BT R RER
HE R S EAL M AR E R HAER -
3 37838 R B K AR E 0 AR TS B EE A e
EERBIREH R AR -

AEEZERLOIFITERSE - A%
EEEHEE NGB RBLEANRE
KRB EMNRRRMMAFE - BT
R RRBELERE  AREARED
NRROBRE SR ARRRERR -
BT E B EARE

AREBIMERL RERER - ZLLERR
FEBIR AR INHETS < FEBHE
EEZENEA HERE  HMER
REREFERRENTIR  RERE
B GEEBY LB RIRITRR - BN
ARARHEA NEERE o

B R R R AR A T
B -GEEHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 3R & T =

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted
by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing future cash
flow requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to
support its business. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 were as follows:

BERER A ORHR

EXREE(E)

RNEE R RS RARIFIER L RIETRRE A
BAKE + ATIFEER - NEBERE
ME BRI BEIEETRENEMARIRE
MEE KM MBI EERORED @ REF
ATARITRE A EKFE RFARKERT
SIMBETE(WFE) - URERAEE
HEHEEKTINERTIFEER - R
T+ A=+—HRZZE=ZTF
T A=t—HBMEERBLENT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Trade payables B SR 40,084 22,909
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,989 7,725
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIE R ERT B A 34,793 37,086
Tax payable EANE A 1,962 1,913
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRIReEED (26,757) (8,293)
Less: Pledged bank balance B BERIRIRI TR (297) (10,054)
Net debt (A) SFETE(A) 62,774 51,286
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the — BFAGIHEA AE(LHER

parent 217,696 236,508
Capital and net debt (B) B K FETE(B) 280,470 287,794
Gearing ratio (A/B) 1EELEZE(AB) 22% 18%
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75 3R & MY =

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. AR R MBARR K

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at BRARE BARANR BB BARR R E R
the end of the reporting period is as follows: HAT ¢
2021 2020
-5 BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI%E 21,848 21,848
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables = e e 1 3,214
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERER - H2E RE A EIGRIE 709 727
Due from subsidiaries JrE LB S A Rl IA 134,380 138,531
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFESEEY 654 407
Total current assets BB EREE 135,744 142,879
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H At R IE R EET B A 351 1,499
Due to a related party JE 1~ — S BB 5 50E 5,583 5,800
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 5,934 7,299
Net current assets MENEEFE 129,810 135,580
Net assets HESFE 151,658 157,428
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT 35,415 35,415
Reserves (note) bt (FaE) 116,243 122,013
Total equity R 151,658 157,428

B BT R IR B R A F
R -EFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%5 R AR M R

31 December 2021 —E=—F+=A=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

37. RRB BT K (E)

Note: BFE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARARKFEEB AT
Share Exchange Share
premium Capital Contributed fluctuation option  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ERRE B
RAEER BARE AR e e RiEB @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR
1 January 2020 R=2-Z§—-f—-H 75,163 55,161 11,502 10,759 3,724 (18,631) 137,678
Total comprehensive loss for the year A%EE 2 HEEERE - - - (8,638) - (1,983) (10,621)
Transfer to contributed surplus BREHARS (10,000) = 10,000 - - - -
Equity-settled share option INER A E 2 BIER
arrangements - - - - (286) = (286)
2019 final dividend declared EEZT-NERBRE = - (4,758) - - - (4,758)
At31 December 2020 and RZZ-EF+-A=+-HR
1 January 2021 —F-—%-f-H 65,163 55,161 16,744 2,121 3438 (20,614) 122,013
Total comprehensive loss for the year A5 /E 2 HE1E4H = = = (3,882) = (2,254) (6,136)
Equity-settled share option AR BB
arrangements - - - - 366 - 366
At 31 December 2021 W=E-_—4%+-A=1—H 65,163 55,161 16,744 (1,761) 3,804 (22,868) 116,243
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a number of amendments and standard, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

B 7% ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+=A=+—H

38.

ﬁi_?:—ﬂf-'— H
=t+—-BLEFEEHEMES
REBWIERT A - HEAR
RENTREE

HEUFMBEREATIZERS - BREs
EAEEECBEMZERBE_T—_—

F+Z A=t —RIFFERREREIE
FIARER - BWER I ERBRERA
R - It FHREIE IR e AL
BE#E :

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT5 Bz #BAREs
HMEER

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework

BRI B RIS - BISERN2E (BFTA)

1 January 2022

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022

BIFRE s ERIE 165 - W% - BE M&kE - BEREBIFSHRA

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

BIFR @5t ERIZE375% - BEEH —BITE HEBA
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 cycle
BRI EER —E— \FE T - —FRBANFENE

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

B e ERIE LR - RED R AR S ERE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023

B ERIE 1 KBRS RE LR BEBRALEN - BESFER

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

RERTERESSE — SRR ER

—E-F—-H—H
—E--f—H—H
1 January 2022
= —#—Hf—H
1 January 2022
—E-F—-H—H
1 January 2023
B =
—E-=%—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=#—H—H

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single 1 January 2023

transaction

Bt ERE 125 - RE-RXZELNEERREABNELEHR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

—=5—f—¢

$%IEE#%%%¥@%%%%%%
MERELNTE - £5EmA TR

AR KA e 4R A B B RIEK
BARE

B R R R AR A T
—E-—FEERE
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—EtF ZE-N\F ZTNF ZTTF =B--F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETT AR%®T=R
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 115,823 129,292 148,034 100,529 131,279
Profit/(loss) before tax BBiADE A, (B51R) 17,719 22,705 21,118 (506) (20,870)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF(EE) 14,026 19,828 18,513 61 (17,977)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ~ LATR AL &L A,

(B8) :
Owners of the Company AAREA A 14,026 19,788 18,221 584 (18,211)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+F ZE-NF ZT-NF ZTTF ZB--F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTrT ARETRT ARBTRT AR%ETR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Total assets BEMBE 239,923 295,215 319,100 316,057 316,265
Total liabilities BEERE 54,660 61,072 69,169 74,605 94,026
Net assets BEFE 185,263 234,143 249,931 241,452 222,239
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